
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Keith Brady    
 
INVOCATION 
 
READING OF MINUTES 
 

I Minutes from Regular Meeting on September 10, 2019 .......................................................... Tab A 
 
REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMISSION 

 
I 2 Appointments – Cultural Arts Commission – 3 Year Terms 
 
II 1 Appointment – Keep Newnan Beautiful – 3 Year Term 
 
III Annual Report – Keep Newnan Beautiful 
   

REPORTS ON OPERATIONS BY CITY MANAGER 
 
REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM MAYOR 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

I Public Hearing – Consideration of Ordinance to Amend the Code of Ordinances 
of the City of Newnan adopting revisions to Article 1, Chapter 6, Businesses ........................ Tab B 

 
II Ordinance to Amend the 2019 Budget for the Christmas Commission.................................... Tab C 
 
III Consideration of ordinances regarding the regulation of small cell wireless 

facilities and utility permitting within the city owned right-of-way ............................................. Tab D 
� An ordinance amending the Code of City of Newnan, Georgia at Chapter 18, 

Streets, Sidewalks and Public Places, by enacting a new Article IX.  Georgia 
Streamlining Wireless Facilities and Antennas Act; 

� An ordinance to amend Chapter 18 of the Official Code of the City of 
Newnan, Georgia “Streets, Sidewalks and Public Places”, in order to adopt 
updated regulations to administer and regulate the placement of utilities in 
the public right of way in the public interest as set out in Article III, Poles and 
Wires; 

 
IV Consider and offer staff direction concerning an update to the WWI Plaque at the 

Veteran’s Memorial Plaza ......................................................................................................... Tab E 
 
V Consider Resolution authorizing application for Georgia Outdoor Stewardship 

Program Grant (GOSP) to assist in the funding of the Newnan LINC Downtown 
Connector ................................................................................................................................. Tab F 

 
VI Consideration of a Resolution of Commitment to Support the Long-Term 

Maintenance of the LINC for application for a Georgia Outdoor Stewardship 
Program Grant (GOSP) ............................................................................................................ Tab G 

 
VII Information Only – Rezoning request by WP South Acquisitions LLC for 22.485+ 

acres located at the corner of Bullsboro Drive and Ashley Park Drive from CGN 
(General Commercial District) to RMH (Residential Multiple-Family Dwelling-
Higher Density District) – Planning Commission ...................................................................... Tab H 

Newnan City Council Meeting 
SEPTEMBER 24, 2019 

Newnan City Hall 
Richard A. Bolin Council Chambers  

25 LaGrange Street 
6:30 pm 



NEWNAN CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA – September 24, 2019 @ 6:30 P.M. ..................... Page 2 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
I Consider approval for application development and administrative services 

related to the City’s 2020 CDBG application ............................................................................. Tab I 
 

II 6 Glenn Street – New owner to update Council on status and request extension 
to repair or demolish .................................................................................................................. Tab J 

 
III Continue Public Hearing from August 27, 2019 – 8 Glenn Street – Resolution to 

repair or demolish ..................................................................................................................... Tab K 
 
IV 280 W. Washington Street – Owner to request 180-day extension ......................................... Tab L 

 
VISITORS, PETITIONS, COMMUNICATIONS & COMPLAINTS 

 
I Parks of Olmstead request to place Yard Sale Banners at their two main 

entrances from Monday October 28th throughout Saturday November 2nd for their 
annual community yard sale event .......................................................................................... Tab M 

 
II Newnan Junior Service League requests to hold their 36th Annual Can-A-Thon as 

in the past on Tuesday December 3rd from 7 am to 7 pm on the square ................................. Tab N 
 
III Eric Marston FBC Newnan would like to set up tables with banners in two 

locations downtown to offer free gift wrapping on Saturday November 30, 2019 
from 1:30 – 4:30 pm  ................................................................................................................ Tab O 

 
IV Request from African American Heritage Museum and Research Center for a 

Ground Penetrating Radar survey to be conducted on the site of Farmer Street 
Cemetery at 92 Farmer Street .................................................................................................. Tab P 

 
V Consideration of Use of Public Right of Ways for Random Productions for an 

HBO Film Project from September 30, 2019 – October 4, 2019 .............................................. Tab Q 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – LEGAL, PERSONNEL AND REAL ESTATE 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

 



















City of Newnan, Georgia
Mayor and Council

Date: September 24, 2019

Agenda Item: Ordinance to amend the Code of Ordinances of the 
City of Newnan adopting revisions to Article 1, 
Chapter 6, Businesses

Prepared By: Katrina Cline, Finance Director

Presented By: Cleatus Phillips, City Manager

Purpose: To adopt an ordinance to amend the Code of Ordinances for the City of Newnan by 
adopting revisions to Chapter 6, Businesses.

Background: The City’s Occupational Tax Ordinance has been thoroughly reviewed and the 
revisions suggested by staff are redlined on the copy attached. These revisions are 
being suggested after many years of occupational tax collections by staff, where 
such revisions will clarify existing requirements for certificate issuance or help to 
ensure that all businesses renew their annual certificates in a timely manner. 
Additionally, minimum and maximum occupational tax amounts have been added 
to more fairly spread the cost of collections and maintenance by staff across all 
businesses operating in the city of Newnan. Finally, the annual pay-by date is 
being changed from April 1st to April 15th to match the IRS due date for filing taxes. 
The due date remains the same – January 1st.

Funding: N/A. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends that Council adopt the ordinance revisions as submitted.

Options: 1.  Adopt the ordinance revisions as submitted.
2.  Other action as directed by Council.

Attachments: Redlined copy of Chapter 6 with suggested revisions outlined.

Previous Discussion with Council: N/A.







































City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council

Date:  September 24, 2019

Agenda Item: Ordinance to Amend the 2019 Budget for the 
Christmas Commission

Prepared By:  Katrina Cline, Finance Director

Presented By:  Cleatus Phillips, City Manager

Purpose: To obtain Council approval of an Ordinance to amend the 2019 General Fund 
Budget for the Christmas Commission in the amount of $23,693.

Background: Ms. Norma Haynes, Chairman of the Christmas Commission, recommended that 
Council approve the addition of expenses for the 2019 Christmas season, which 
would include new decorations, bows, sleigh repairs, replacement ornaments and 
decoration of City parks and buildings and downtown tree lighting. The request was 
approved by Council at the August 27, 2019 meeting.

.

Funding: General Fund.

Recommendation: Approve the 2019 budget amendment as presented.

          

Options:
1. Approve the budget amendment as presented.
2. Other action as directed by Council.

Attachments: N/A.

Previous Discussion with Council: Council Meeting of August 27, 2019.



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE 2019 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET

BE IT ORDAINED, and it is hereby ordained, that the City Council has authorized an amendment to the 
2019 General Fund Revenue Budget in the amount of $23,693 (Miscellaneous Revenue) and the General 
Fund Expense Budget in the amount of $23,693 (Other Boards & Commissions). This amendment 
ensures that all approved expenditures for the Christmas Commission have been funded and approved 
by Council. Therefore, the 2019 Budget is hereby amended to include the additional appropriations 
discussed above, per the attached 2019 Budget Amendment Request.

ATTEST:     ___________________________________ 
      L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Della Hill, City Clerk     
      ___________________________________ 
      Cynthia E. Jenkins, Mayor Pro-Tem 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney George M. Alexander, Councilmember 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager  Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Rhodes H. Shell, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Dustin Koritko, Councilmember 
 
 
      _________________________________ 

Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: September 24, 2019   
 
Agenda Item:  Small Cell and ROW Ordinance 
 
Prepared by:   Cleatus Phillips, City Manager 

 
 
 
Purpose:     Consideration of ordinances regarding the regulation of small cell wireless facilities 
and utility permitting within the city owned right-of-way.   
 
 
Background:    During the 2018 and 2019 legislative sessions Georgia Municipal Association 
(GMA) was deeply involved in legislation relating to small wireless facilities, also known as small 
cells, in the right of way. GMA helped defeat harmful legislation in 2018 but, through extensive 
negotiations after the 2018 legislative session, was able to reach agreement with AT&T, 
Verizon, and ACCG on legislation that would allow for streamlined processes concerning the 
installation of small cells in the right of way. 
 
As a result of this legislation, GMA has worked to develop model documents that should help 
local governments comply with the new law. The model small cell ordinance and ROW 
ordinance provide a template for Georgia cities seeking to comply with state and federal law on 
small cells while still retaining levels of local control provided by such state and federal laws.   
 
 
Recommendation:  It is the recommendation of staff to adopt the small cell and ROW ordinances. 
 
 
Attachments:     Ordinances 
 
           
Previous Discussions with Council:      N/A 



 

 1 

 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA AT 
CHAPTER 18, STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND PUBLIC PLACES, BY ENACTING A NEW 
ARTICLE IX. GEORGIA STREAMLINING WIRELESS FACILITIES AND ANTENNAS 
ACT; ENACTING REASONABLE REGULATIONS AND OBJECTIVE STANDARDS FOR 
THE PERMITTING OF SMALL ANTENNA WITHIN THE PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY OF 
THE CITY WHILE ENSURING THE USE OF PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY IS 
CONSISTENT WITH THE DESIGN, APPEARANCE AND OTHER FEATURES OF 
NEARBY LAND USES, PROTECTS THE INTEGRITY OF HISTORIC, CULTURAL AND 
SCENIC RESOURCES AND DOES NOT HARM RESIDENTS’ QUALITY OF LIFE; TO 
PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO RESTATE 
AND REAFFIRM THE CODE OF CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA, AS MODIFIED 
HEREBY; TO REPEAL ALL CODE PROVISIONS, ORDINANCES, OR PARTS 
THEREOF, IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CITY OF 
NEWNAN, GEORGIA, AND IT IS ESTABLISHED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 
SECTION I. The Code of the City of Newnan, Georgia is hereby amended at 

Chapter 18, STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND PUBLIC PLACES, by enacting a new Article 
IX. GEORGIA STREAMLINING WIRELESS FACILITIES AND ANTENNAS ACT, to comply 
with Act 53 (SB 66, 2019 General Session, codified as O.C.G.A. Title 36, Chapter 66C), 
as follows: 

 
ARTICLE V 

STREAMLINING WIRELESS FACILITIES AND ANTENNAS ACT 

 
SEC. 18-230. PURPOSE AND COMPLIANCE 

O.C.G.A. §32-4-92(a)(10)  authorizes the City of Newnan, Georgia (the “City”) to 
establish reasonable regulations for the installation, construction, maintenance, 
renewal, removal, and relocation of pipes, mains, conduits, cables, wires, poles, towers, 
traffic and other signals, and other equipment, facilities, or appliances in, on, along, 
over, or under the public roads and rights of way of the City.  Further, 47 U.S.C. § 253(c) 
provides that the City has authority to manage its public rights of way.  Finally, the 
Georgia Streamlining Wireless Facilities and Antennas Act, O.C.G.A. Title 36, Chapter 
66C (hereafter, the “SWFAA”), addresses the placement of small wireless facilities in the 
public rights of way of the City.  

Sec. 18-230.1. The City finds it is in the best interest of the City and its residents and 
businesses to establish requirements, specifications, and reasonable conditions 
regarding placement of small wireless facilities, support structures and poles in the 
public rights of way.  These requirements, specifications and conditions are adopted in 
order to protect the public health, safety and welfare of the residents and businesses of 



 

 2 

the City and to reasonably manage and protect the public rights of way and its uses in 
the City. 

Sec. 18-230.2. The objective of this Article is to (i) implement the SWFAA and (ii) ensure 
use of the public rights of way is consistent with the design, appearance and other 
features of nearby land uses, protects the integrity of historic, cultural and scenic 
resources and does not harm residents’ quality of life.  

Sec. 18-231. Definitions. 

As used in this Article, the following terms have the following meanings: 

(a) “Antenna” means: (i) communications equipment that transmits, 
receives, or transmits and receives electromagnetic radio frequency signals used 
in the provision of wireless services or other wireless communications; or (ii) 
Communications equipment similar to equipment described in part (i) used for 
the transmission, reception, or transmission and reception of surface waves.  
Such term shall not include television broadcast antennas, antennas designed 
for amateur radio use, or satellite dishes for residential or household purposes. 

(b) “Applicable Codes” means uniform building, fire, safety, electrical, 
plumbing, or mechanical codes adopted by a recognized national code 
organization to the extent such codes have been adopted by the State of Georgia 
or the City or are otherwise applicable in the City. 

(c) “Applicant” means any person that submits an application. 

(d) “Application” means a written request submitted by an applicant to 
the City for a permit to: (i) collocate a small wireless facility in a right of way; or 
(ii) install, modify, or replace a pole or decorative pole in a right of way on which 
a small wireless facility is or will be located. 

(e) “Authority Pole” means a pole owned, managed, or operated by or 
on behalf of the City.  Such term shall not include poles, support structures, 
electric transmission structures, or equipment of any type owned by an electric 
supplier. 

(f) “Collocate” or “Collocation” means to install, mount, modify, or 
replace a small wireless facility on or adjacent to a pole, decorative pole, or 
support structure.  

(g) “Communications Facility” means the set of equipment and network 
components, including wires and cables and associated equipment and network 
components, used by a communications service provider to provide 
communications services.  

(h) “Communications Service Provider” means a provider of 
communications services. 



 

 3 

(i) “Communications Services” means cable service as defined in 47 
U.S.C. § 522(6); telecommunications service as defined in 47 U.S.C. § 153(53); 
information service as defined in 47 U.S.C. Section 153(24), as each such term 
existed on January 1, 2019; or wireless services. 

(j) “Consolidated Application” means an application for the collocation 
of multiple small wireless facilities on existing poles or support structures or for 
the installation, modification, or replacement of multiple poles and the collocation 
of associated small wireless facilities. 

(k) “Decorative Pole” means an authority pole that is specially designed 
and placed for aesthetic purposes. 

(l) “Electric Supplier” means any electric light and power company 
subject to regulation by the Georgia Public Service Commission, any electric 
membership corporation furnishing retail service in this state, and any 
municipality which furnishes such service within this state. 

(m) “Eligible Facilities Request” means an eligible facilities request as 
set forth in 47 C.F.R. § 1.40001(b)(3), as it existed on January 1, 2019. 

(n) “FCC” means the Federal Communications Commission of the 
United States. 

(o) “Fee” means a one-time, nonrecurring charge based on time and 
expense. 

(p) “Historic District” means: (i) any district, site, building, structure, 
or object included in, or eligible for inclusion in, the National Register of Historic 
Places maintained by the secretary of the interior of the United States in 
accordance with Section VI.D.1.a.i-v of the Nationwide Programmatic Agreement 
codified by 47 C.F.R. Part 1; (ii) any area designated as a historic district under 
Article 2 of Chapter 10 of Title 44, the Georgia Historic Preservation Act'; or (iii) 
any area designated as a historic district or property by law prior to April 26, 
2019]. 

(q) “Law” means and includes any and all federal, state, or local laws, 
statutes, common laws, codes, rules, regulations, orders, or ordinances. 

(r) “Micro Wireless Facility” means a small wireless facility not larger 
in dimension than 24 inches in length, 15 inches in width, and 12 inches in 
height that has an exterior antenna, if any, no longer than 11 inches. 

(s) “Permit” means a written authorization, in electronic or hard copy 
format, required to be issued by the City to initiate, continue, or complete the 
collocation of a small wireless facility or the installation, modification, or 
replacement of a pole or decorative pole upon which a small wireless facility is 
collocated. 



 

 4 

(t) “Person” means an individual, corporation, limited liability 
company, partnership, association, trust, or other entity or organization, 
including an authority. 

(u) “Pole” means a vertical pole such as a utility, lighting, traffic, or 
similar pole made of wood, concrete, metal, or other material that is lawfully 
located or to be located within a right of way, including without limitation a 
replacement pole and an authority pole.  Such term shall not include a support 
structure, decorative pole, or electric transmission structure. 

(v) “Rate” means a recurring charge.  

(w) “Reconditioning Work” means the activities associated with 
substantially painting, reconditioning, improving, or repairing authority poles.  

(x) “Replace,” “Replacement” or “Replacing” means to replace a pole or 
decorative pole with a new pole or a new decorative pole, similar in design, size, 
and scale to the existing pole or decorative pole consistent with 47 C.F.R. § 
1.40001(b)(7) as it existed on January 1, 2019, in order to address limitations of, 
or change requirements applicable to, the existing pole to structurally support 
the collocation of a small wireless facility. 

(y) “Replacement Work” means the activities associated with replacing 
an authority pole.  

(z) “Right of Way” means, generally, property or any interest therein, 
whether or not in the form of a strip, which is acquired for or devoted to a public 
road; provided, however, that such term shall apply only to property or an interest 
therein that is under the ownership or control of the City and shall not include 
property or any interest therein acquired for or devoted to an interstate highway 
or the public rights, structures, sidewalks, facilities, and appurtenances of 
buildings for public equipment and personnel used for or engaged in 
administration, construction, or maintenance of public roads or research 
pertaining thereto or scenic easements and easements of light, air, view and 
access. 

(aa) “Small Wireless Facility” means radio transceivers; surface wave 
couplers; antennas; coaxial, fiber optic, or other cabling; power supply; backup 
batteries; and comparable and associated equipment, regardless of technological 
configuration, at a fixed location or fixed locations that enable communication or 
surface wave communication between user equipment and a communications 
network and that meet both of the following qualifications: (i) each wireless 
provider's antenna could fit within an enclosure of no more than six cubic feet in 
volume; and (ii) all other wireless equipment associated with the facility is 
cumulatively no more than 28 cubic feet in volume, measured based upon the 
exterior dimensions of height by width by depth of any enclosure that may be 
used. The following types of associated ancillary equipment are not included in 
the calculation of the volume of all other wireless equipment associated with any 
such facility: electric meters; concealment elements; telecommunications 
demarcation boxes; grounding equipment; power transfer switches; cut-off 



 

 5 

switches; and vertical cable runs for connection of power and other services.  
Such term shall not include a pole, decorative pole, or support structure on, 
under, or within which the equipment is located or collocated or to which the 
equipment is attached and shall not include any wireline backhaul facilities or 
coaxial, fiber optic, or other cabling that is between small wireless facilities, poles, 
decorative poles, or support structures or that is not otherwise immediately 
adjacent to or directly associated with a particular antenna. 

(bb) “State” means the State of Georgia.  

 (cc) “Stealth” means a wireless telecommunication facility that is hidden 
or not readily detectable by means of camouflage or concealment.  Camouflage 
shall mean a way of painting and mounting a wireless telecommunication facility 
that requires minimal changes to the host structure in order to accommodate the 
facility.  Concealment shall mean to enclose a wireless telecommunication facility 
within an existing structure or appurtenance of a structure resulting in the 
facility being either invisible or made part of the feature enclosing it.  For the 
purpose of this ordinance, stealth will also include mounting on existing utility 
infrastructure not extending more than ten (10) feet above the highest horizontal 
plane. 
 

(dd) Support Structure” means a building, billboard, water tank, or any 
other structure to which a small wireless facility is or may be attached.  Such 
term shall not include a decorative pole, electric transmission structure, or pole. 

(ee) “ Wireless Infrastructure Provider” means any person, including a 
person authorized to provide telecommunications services in this state, that 
builds, installs, or operates small wireless facilities, poles, decorative poles, or 
support structures on which small wireless facilities are or are intended to be 
used for collocation but that is not a wireless services provider. 

(ff) “Wireless Provider” means a wireless infrastructure provider or a 
wireless services provider. 

(gg) “Wireless Services” means any services provided to the public using 
licensed or unlicensed spectrum, including the use of Wi-Fi, whether at a fixed 
location or mobile.  

(hh) “Wireless Services Provider” means a person that provides wireless 
services. 

(ii) “Wireless Telecommunications Facility (WTF), means any current or 
future small wireless facility technology innovations.  This encompasses several 
basic components:  Antennas, Cable, Base equipment, cabinets/shelter, Power 
source, backhaul capability, mounting devices, structure to mount to: tower, 
water tank, poles, street light posts, roof tops, commercial signage etc.  

  



 

 6 

 
(jj) “Wireline Backhaul Facility” means an aboveground or underground 

wireline facility used to transport communications data from a 
telecommunications demarcation box associated with small wireless facility to 
a network. 

In the event that any federal or state law containing definitions used in this Article is 
amended, the definition in the referenced section, as amended, shall control. 
 

Sec. 18-232. Permits. 

Sec. 18-232.1. A permit is required to collocate a small wireless facility1 in the public 
right of way or to install, modify, or replace a pole or a decorative pole in the public right 
of way.  A permit is not required to perform the activities described in O.C.G.A. § 36-
66C-6(e) or (f). 

Sec. 18-232.2. Any person seeking to collocate a small wireless facility in the public 
right of way or to install, modify, or replace a pole or a decorative pole in the public right 
of way shall submit an application to the Planning Director for a permit.  Application 
forms are available from the Planning Department.  Any material change to information 
contained in an application shall be submitted in writing to the Planning Director within 
30 days after the events necessitating the change.  

Sec. 18-232.3. Each application for a permit shall include payment of the maximum 
application fees permitted under O.C.G.A. § 36-66C-5(a)(1), (a)(2) and (a)(3) in order to 
be deemed “complete”.2  Such maximum application fees shall automatically increase 
on January 1 of each year beginning January 1, 2021, as provided under O.C.G.A. § 
36-66C-5(b).   

Sec. 18-232.4. The Planning Director shall review applications for permits according to 
the timelines and using the procedures identified in O.C.G.A. §§ 36-66C-7 and 36-66C-
13.  

Sec. 18-232.5. Applications for permits shall be approved, except as follows:  

(a) In order to receive a permit to install a pole or replace a decorative pole, the 
applicant must demonstrate that after diligent investigation that it cannot 
meet the service objectives of the permit by collocating on an existing pole or 
support structure on which: (i) the applicant has the right to collocate subject 
to reasonable terms and conditions; and (ii) such collocation would not impose 
technical limitations or significant additional costs. The applicant shall certify 
that it has made such a determination in good faith, based on the assessment 

                                                      
1 NOTE Under SWFAA, collocation can be on or adjacent to: (i) a pole or decorative pole or (ii) a support structure.  
By definition, poles and decorative poles are in the right of way.  Support structures may be located outside of the 
right of way.  Permitting of towers and support structures off the public rights of way is not part of this process.   
2 Note, if 2018 FCC Order regarding fees is overturned or modified, this should be revisited.  SWFAA provides that 
if the FCC Order is modified or terminated, then fees are capped at what is “fair and reasonable.” 



 

 7 

of a licensed engineer, and shall provide a written summary of the basis for 
such determination. 

(b) The Planning Director may deny an application for a permit upon any of the 
conditions identified in O.C.G.A. § 36-66C-7(j). 

(c) For applications for new poles in the public right of way in areas zoned for 
residential use, the Planning Director may propose an alternate location in 
the public right of way within 100 feet of the location set forth in the 
application, and the wireless provider shall use the proposed alternate 
location unless the location imposes technical limits or significant additional 
costs. The wireless provider shall certify that it has made such a 
determination in good faith, based on the assessment of a licensed engineer, 
and it shall provide a written summary of the basis for such determination. 

Sec. 18-232.6. A permit issued under this Article shall authorize the applicant to 
occupy the public rights of way to: (i) collocate a small wireless facility on or adjacent to 
a pole or a support structure that does not exceed the limitations set forth in O.C.G.A. 
§ 36-66C-7(h)(3) or on or adjacent to a decorative pole in compliance with O.C.G.A. § 
36-66C-12; and (ii) install, modify, or replace a pole or decorative pole for collocation of 
a small wireless facility that does not exceed the limitations set forth in O.C.G.A. § 36-
66C-7(h)(1) and (h)(2). Any person issued a permit shall pay the fees identified in 
O.C.G.A. § 36-66C-5(a)(6) and (a)(7), as applicable. 

Sec. 18-232.7. Upon each anniversary of the issuance of a permit under this Article, 
every person issued a permit shall submit to the City the maximum annual payments 
permitted under O.C.G.A. § 36-66C-5(a)(4) and (a)(5); provided, however, that if such 
person removes its small wireless facilities from the public rights of way pursuant to 
O.C.G.A. § 36-66C-5(e), then such person shall be responsible for the pro rata portion 
of the annual payment based on the number of days of occupation since the last annual 
payment.  Upon making such pro rata payment and removal of the small wireless 
facilities, the person’s annual payment obligations under this section shall cease as of 
the date of the actual removal.  The maximum annual payments shall automatically 
increase on January 1 of each year beginning January 1, 2021, as provided under 
O.C.G.A. § 36-66C-5(b). 

Sec. 18-232.8. The City may revoke a permit issued pursuant to this Article if the 
wireless provider or its equipment placed in the public right of way under that permit 
subsequently is not in compliance with any provision of this Article or the Georgia 
Streamlining Wireless Facilities and Antennas Act.  Upon revocation, the City may 
proceed according to Sec. 3-9. 

Sec. 18-232.9. If a wireless provider occupies the public rights of way without obtaining 
a permit required by this Article or without complying with the SWFAA, then the City 
may, at the sole discretion of the City Manager, restore the right of way, to the extent 
practicable in the reasonable judgment of the City Manager, to its condition prior to the 
unpermitted collocation or installation and to charge the responsible wireless provider 
the reasonable, documented cost of the City in doing so, plus a penalty not to exceed 
$1,000.00.  The City may suspend the ability of the wireless provider to receive any new 
permits from the City under this Article until the wireless provider has paid the amount 



 

 8 

assessed for such restoration costs and the penalty assessed, if any; provided, however, 
that the City may not suspend such ability of any applicant that has deposited the 
amount in controversy in escrow pending an adjudication of the merits of the dispute 
by a court of competent jurisdiction. 

Sec. 18-232.10. All accepted applications for permits shall be publicly available subject 
to the limitations identified in O.C.G.A. § 36-66C-6(c). 

Sec. 18-232.11. An applicant may file a consolidated application related to multiple 
small wireless facilities, poles or decorative poles so long as such consolidated 
application meets the requirements of O.C.G.A. § 36-66C-13. 

Sec. 18-232.12. Activities authorized under a permit shall be completed within the 
timelines provided in O.C.G.A. § 36-66C-7(k)(2). 

Sec. 18-232.13. Issuance of a permit authorizes the applicant to: (i) undertake the 
collocation, installation, modification or replacement approved by the permit and (ii) 
operate and maintain the small wireless facilities and any associated pole covered by 
the permit for a period of 10 years. 

Sec. 18-232.14. Permits shall be renewed following the expiration of the term identified 
in Sec. 3-13 upon the terms and conditions identified in O.C.G.A. § 36-66C-7(k)(2)(B). 

Sec. 18-232.15. If an applicant for a permit seeks to collocate small wireless facilities 
on authority poles in the public rights of way, then the City shall, within 60-days of 
receipt of the completed application: (i) provide a good faith estimate for any make-ready 
work necessary to enable the authority pole to support the proposed facility; or (ii) notify 
the wireless provider that the wireless provider will be required to perform the make-
ready work.  Any make-ready work performed by the City shall be completed pursuant 
to and in accordance with the provisions of O.C.G.A. § 36-66C-7(n).  

SEC. 18-233. REMOVAL; RELOCATION; RECONDITIONING; REPLACEMENT;  
   ABANDONMENT OF FACILITIES FROM PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY. 

Sec. 18-233.1. A person may remove its small wireless facilities from the public rights 
of way according to the procedures of O.C.G.A. § 36-66C-5(e). 

Sec. 18-233.2. In the event of a removal under Sec. 4-1, the right of way shall be, to 
the extent practicable in the reasonable judgment of the City Manager, restored to its 
condition prior to the removal.  If a person fails to return the right of way, to the extent 
practicable in the reasonable judgment of the City, to its condition prior to the removal 
within 90 days of the removal, the City may, restore the right of way to such condition 
and charge the person the City’s reasonable, documented cost of removal and 
restoration, plus a penalty not to exceed $500.00.  The City may suspend the ability of 
the person to receive any new permits under this Article until the person has paid the 
amount assessed for such restoration costs and the penalty assessed, if any; provided, 
however, that the City will not suspend such ability of any person that has deposited 
the amount in controversy in escrow pending an adjudication of the merits of the dispute 
by a court of competent jurisdiction. 



 

 9 

Sec. 18-233.3. If, in the reasonable exercise of police powers, the City determines: (i) a 
pole or support structure unreasonably interferes with the  widening, repair, 
reconstruction, or relocation of a public road or highway, or (ii) relocation of poles, 
support structures, or small wireless facilities is required as a result of a public project, 
the wireless provider shall relocate such poles, support structures, or small wireless 
facilities pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of O.C.G.A. § 36-66C-7(l).  
If the wireless provider fails to relocate a pole, support structure or small wireless facility 
or fails to provide a written good faith estimate of the time needed to relocate the pole, 
support structure or small wireless within the time period prescribed in O.C.G.A. § 36-
66C-7(l), the City make take the actions authorized by O.C.G.A. § 36-66C-7(o), in 
addition to any other powers under applicable law. 

Sec. 18-233.4. The City shall recondition and replace authority poles consistent with 
the provisions of O.C.G.A. § 36-66C-7(m).  Wireless providers shall accommodate and 
cooperate with reconditioning and replacement consistent with the provisions of 
O.C.G.A. § 36-66C-7(m). 

Sec. 18-233.5. A wireless provider must notify the City of its decision to abandon any 
small wireless facility, support structure or pole pursuant to and in accordance with the 
provisions of O.C.G.A. § 36-66C-7(p)(1).  The wireless provider shall perform all acts and 
duties identified in O.C.G.A. § 36-66C-7(p) regarding abandonment.  The City may take 
all actions and exercise all powers authorized under O.C.G.A. § 36-66C-7(p) upon 
abandonment, in addition to any other powers under applicable law. 

 
SEC. 18-234. FACILITIES STANDARDS. 

Sec. 18-234.1. Small wireless facilities and new, modified, or replacement poles to be 
used for collocation of small wireless facilities may be placed in the public right of way: 
(i) upon a receipt of a permit under this Article; (ii) subject to all applicable codes; and 
(iii) so long as such small wireless facilities and new, modified, or replacement poles to 
be used for collocation of small wireless facilities comply with the appropriate provisions 
of O.C.G.A. § 36-66C-7(h). 

Sec. 18-234.2. Installation of new facilities in, on, along, over, or under the public rights 
of way or modification of existing facilities in, on, along, over, or under the public rights 
of way shall, in all cases: 

(a) Minimize risks to public safety; 
 

(b) Ensure that placement of facilities on existing structures is within the 
tolerances of those structures; 

 
(c) Ensure that installations and modifications are subject to periodic review to 

minimize the intrusion on the right of way; 
 
(d) Ensure that the City bears no risk or liability as a result of such installation 

or modification; and 
 



 

 10 

(e) Ensure that use of the public rights of way does not inconvenience the 
public, interfere with the primary uses of public rights of way, or hinder the 
ability of the City or other government entities to improve, modify, relocate, 
abandon, or vacate the right of way or any portion thereof, or cause the 
improvement, modification, relocation, vacation, or abandonment of facilities 
in the right of way. 

 

Sec. 18-234.3. New, modified, or replacement poles installed in the right of way in a 
historic district and in an area zoned primarily for residential use shall not exceed 50 
feet above ground level. 

Sec. 18.234.4. Each new, modified, or replacement pole installed in the right of way 
that is not in a historic district or in an area zoned primarily for residential use shall 
not exceed the greater of:  

1. Fifty feet above ground level; or 

2. Ten feet greater in height above ground level than the tallest existing pole 
in the same public right of way in place as of January 1, 2019, and located 
within 500 feet of the new proposed pole;  

Sec. 18-234.5. New small wireless facilities in the public right of way and collocated on 
an existing pole or support structure shall not exceed more than ten feet above the 
existing pole or support structure. 

Sec. 18-234.6. New small wireless facilities in the public right of way collocated on a 
new or replacement pole may not extend above the top of such poles. 

Sec. 18-234.7. A decorative pole should only be located where an existing pole can be 
removed and replaced, or at a new location where the City has identified that a 
streetlight is necessary. 

Sec. 18-234.8. Unless it is determined that another design is less intrusive, or 
placement is required under applicable law, small wireless facilities shall be concealed 
as follows: 

i.     Antennas located at the top of poles and support structures shall be 
incorporated into the pole or support structure, or placed within shrouds 
of a size such that the antenna appears to be part of the pole or support 
structure; 

ii. Antennas placed elsewhere on a pole or support structure shall be 
integrated into the pole or support structure, or be designed and placed to 
minimize visual impacts. 

iii. Radio units or equipment cabinets holding radio units and mounted on a 
pole shall be placed as high as possible, located to avoid interfering with, 
or creating any hazard to, any other use of the public rights of way, and 
located on one side of the pole. Unless the radio units or equipment 



 

 11 

cabinets can be concealed by appropriate traffic signage, radio units or 
equipment cabinets mounted below the communications space on poles 
shall be designed so that the largest dimension is vertical, and the width 
is such that the radio units or equipment cabinets are minimally visible 
from the opposite side of the pole on which they are placed. 

iv. Wiring and cabling shall be neat and concealed within or flush to the pole 
or support structure, ensuring concealment of these components to the 
greatest extent possible. 

v. Facilities must be compatible in size, mass, and color to similar facilities 
in the same zoning area, with a goal of minimizing the physical and visual 
impact on the area. In historic and residential areas, facilities shall be 
architecturally integrated with the area and shall not interfere with 
prominent vistas or significant public view corridors.” 

 
 

SECTION II.   All ordinances and Code sections, or parts thereof, in conflict with 
the foregoing are expressly repealed. 

 
 

  SECTION III.   Should any provision of this ordinance be rendered invalid by any 
court of law, the remaining provisions shall continue in force and effect until amended 
or repealed by action of the municipal governing authority. 
 
 
 SECTION IV.  Except as modified herein, The Code of the City of Newnan, 
Georgia, is hereby reaffirmed and restated. The codifier is hereby granted editorial 
license to include this amendment in future supplements of said Code by appropriate 
section, division, article or chapter. The city attorney is directed and authorized to direct 
the codifier to make necessary minor, non-substantive corrections to the provisions of 
this Code, including but not limited to, the misspelling of words, typographical errors, 
duplicate pages, incorrect references to state or federal laws, statutes, this Code, or 
other codes or similar legal or technical sources, and other similar amendments, without 
necessity of passage of a corrective ordinance or other action of the Mayor and Council. 
The city secretary shall, upon the written advice or recommendation of the city attorney 
and without the necessity of further council action, alter, amend or supplement any 
non-codified ordinance, resolution or other record filed in his or her office as necessary 
to effect similar non-substantive changes or revisions and ensure that such public 
records are correct, complete and accurate. 
  



 

 12 

 
 SECTION V.  This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 SO ORDAINED this ______ day of ________________________, 2019. 
 
 
ATTEST:     ___________________________________ 
      L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Della Hill, City Clerk     
      ___________________________________ 
      Cynthia E. Jenkins, Mayor Pro-Tem 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney George M. Alexander, Councilmember 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager  Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Rhodes H. Shell, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Dustin Koritko, Councilmember 
 
 
      _________________________________ 

Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 
 



1 
 

 
 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 18 OF THE OFFICIAL CODE OF THE 
CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA “STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND PUBLIC PLACES”, 

IN ORDER TO ADOPT UPDATED REGULATIONS TO ADMINISTER AND 
REGULATE THE PLACEMENT OF UTILITIES IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY 
IN THE PUBLIC INTEREST AS SET OUT IN ARTICLE III, POLES AND WIRES; 

TO PROVIDE FOR THE ISSUANCE AND REGULATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY 
PERMITS; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Charter of the· City of Newnan (“City”), the 
City is empowered to regulate roadside areas, including rights-of-way;  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to O.C.G.A. 36-76-1 et seq. known as the 
“Consumer Choice for Television Act” of 2007 the City retains regulatory powers 
over certain activity of cable and video providers with respect to public rights-of-
way within or belonging to the City; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to O.C.G.A. 46-5-1 et seq. telephone companies 
shall comply with all applicable local laws and regulations, including municipal 
ordinances and regulations, regarding the placement and maintenance of 
facilities in the public rights of way that are reasonable, nondiscriminatory, and 
applicable to all users of the public rights of way within or belonging to the City; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to establish reasonable nondiscriminatory 
regulations for the installation construction, maintenance, renewal, removal and 
relocations of Utility Facilities that are not more restrictive than equivalent 
regulations promulgated by the Georgia Department of Transportation with 
respect to Utilities on the state highway system under authority of O.C.G.A. 32-
4-70;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED and it is hereby ordained by the 
authority of same by the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan, Georgia as 
follows:  
 
SECTION I.   The Code of Ordinances of the City of Newnan is hereby 
amended by deleting Article III, Poles and Wires of Chapter 18 in its entirety and 
adopting a new Article III, Utility Accommodation Policy, Chapter 18, Streets, 
Sidewalks and Public Places, to read as follows: 



2 
 

ARTICLE III. 
UTILITY ACCOMMODATION POLICY 

 
 SECTION 18-76. DECLARATION OF FINDINGS AND PURPOSE,  
    SCOPE, DEFINITIONS 
 

Section 18-76.1 Intent and Purpose. The City of Newnan (the "City") is 
vitally concerned with the use, construction within, and occupancy of all 
Rights of Way in the City as such Rights of Way are a valuable and limited 
resource which must be utilized to promote the public health, safety, 
welfare, economic development of the City and to protect public work 
infrastructure. Therefore, the City, under the authority of the Laws and 
Constitution of the State of Georgia, including but not limited to Article 9, 
Section 1, paragraphs 2 and 3 of the Georgia Constitution,  O.C.G.A. 36-
1-20  and O.C.G.A. 32-4-42(6), has adopted this ordinance for the 
purpose of regulating public and private entities which use the City 
Rights of Way.  
 
Section 18-76.2 Scope.  The provisions of this Chapter shall apply to 
all Utilities and Facilities occupying the Rights of Way as provided herein.  
 
Section 18-76.3 Definitions. For the purposes of this Chapter, the 
following terms, phrases, words, and their derivations have the meanings 
set forth herein.  The words "shall" and "will" are mandatory and “may” is 
permissive.  Words not defined shall be given their common and ordinary 
meaning.  References hereafter to "Sections" are, unless otherwise 
specified, references to Sections in this Chapter. Defined terms remain 
defined terms whether or not capitalized.  
 

1. City means the City of Newnan, Georgia;  
 
2. Codified Ordinances means the Codified Ordinances of the City of 

Newnan, Georgia;  
 
3. Construct means, but shall not be limited to, dig, bore, tunnel, 

trench, excavate, obstruct, install or remove signs, or Facilities, 
other than landscaping or ornamental plantings, in, on, above, 
within, over, below, under, or through any part of the Rights of 
Way.  Construct shall also include the act of opening and/or 
cutting into the surface of any paved or improved surface that is 
any part of the Right of Way;  

 
4. Construction means, but shall not be limited to, the act or process 

of digging, boring, tunneling, trenching, excavating, obstructing, 
installing or removing signs or Facilities, other than landscaping or 
ornamental plantings, in, on, above, within, over, below, under, or 
through any part of the Rights of Way.  Construction shall also 
include the act of opening, boring and/or cutting into the surface of 
any part of the Right of Way;   

 



3 
 

5. Director means the Director of Public Works of the City of Newnan, 
Georgia, or his or her designee;   

 
6. Emergency means a condition that poses a clear and immediate 

danger to life, health, or safety of a person, or of significant damage 
or loss of real or personal property;   

 
7. Facility or Facilities means any tangible thing, including but not 

limited to pipes, mains, conduits, cables, wires, poles, towers, 
traffic and other signals, and other equipment, appurtenances, 
appliances and future technology of any Utility in, on, along, over, 
or under any part of the Rights of Way within the City;  

 
8. Facilities Representative(s) means the specifically identified 

agent(s)/employee(s) of a Utility who are authorized to direct field 
activities of that Utility and serve as official notice agent(s) for 
Facilities related information.  Utility shall be required to make 
sure at least one (1) of its Facilities Representatives available at all 
times to receive notice of, and immediately direct response to, 
Facilities related emergencies or situations;  

 
9. FCC means the Federal Communications Commission or any 

successor thereto; 
 
10 Permit means an authorization which grants permission to conduct 

specific regulated activities on, in, over, under or within any public 
right-of-way, and which may be subject to conditions specified in a 
written agreement with the City or in a related provision of this 
Code of Ordinances;   

 
11. Right(s) of Way means the surface and space in, on, above, within, 

over, below, under or through any real property in which the City 
has an interest in law or equity, whether held in fee, or other estate 
or interest, or as a trustee for the public, including, but not limited 
to any public street, boulevard, road, highway, freeway, lane, alley, 
court, sidewalk, parkway, or any other place, area, or real property 
owned by or under the legal or equitable control of the City, now or 
hereafter, that consistent with the purposes for which it was 
dedicated, may be used for the purposes of constructing, operating, 
repairing or replacing Facilities;   

 
12. Service(s) means the offering of any service by a Utility for a fee 

directly to the public, or to such classes of users as to be effectively 
available directly to the public, or alternatively, the provision of any 
service by a Utility between two or more points for a proprietary 
purpose to a class of users other than the general public;   

 
13. Service Agreement means a valid license agreement, service 

agreement, franchise agreement, or operating agreement issued by 
the City or state pursuant to Law and accepted by a Utility or 



4 
 

entered into by and between the City and a Utility, which allows 
such Utility to operate or provide service within the geographic 
limits of the City;   

 
14. Street or Streets means the surface of, as well as the spaces above 

and below, any and all the streets, alleys, avenues, roads, bridges, 
tunnels and public places of the City within the corporate limits of 
the City, as the same now exist or may be hereafter extended or 
altered, and any location thereon, thereover or thereunder, and any 
portion thereof;   

 
15. Transfer means the disposal by the Utility, directly or indirectly, by 

gift, assignment, sale, merger, consolidation, or otherwise, of more 
than fifty percent (50%) at one time of the ownership or controlling 
interest in the Facilities, or of more than fifty percent (50%) 
cumulatively over the term of a written approval of Registration of 
such interests to a corporation, partnership, limited partnership, 
trust, or association, or person or group of persons acting in 
concert;  

 
16. Unused Facilities means Facilities located in the Rights of Way 

which have remained unused for twelve (12) months and for which 
the Utility is unable to provide the City with a plan detailing the 
procedure by which the Utility intends to begin actively using such 
Facilities within the next twelve (12) months, or that it has a 
potential purchaser or user of the Facilities who will be actively 
using the Facilities within the next twelve (12) months, or, that the 
availability of such Facilities is required by the Utility to adequately 
and efficiently operate its Facilities;  

 
17. Utility or Utilities means All privately, publicly, or cooperatively 

owned systems for producing, transmitting, or distributing 
communication, data, information, telecommunication, cable 
television, video services, power, electricity, light, heat, gas, oil, 
crude products, water/sewer, steam, fire and police signals, traffic 
control devices, and street lighting systems, and housing or 
conduit for any of the foregoing, which directly or indirectly serve 
the public or any part thereof. The term "utility" may also be used 
to refer to the owner, operator, Utility, service, contractor or 
subcontractor, or any agent thereof, of any above-described utility 
or utility facility. 

 
  SECTION 18-77.  UTILITY REGISTRATION 

 
Section 18-77.1 Registration Required.  Each Utility who 
occupies, uses or has Facilities in the Rights of Way at the time of 
passage of this Ordinance, including by lease, sublease or 
assignment, to operate Facilities located in the Rights of Way, 
unless specifically exempted by state or  federal law or this Code, 



5 
 

shall file a Registration Statement with the Department within 
ninety (90) days of the effective date of this Ordinance. 
Section 18-77.2 Registration Procedure.  The Registration 
information provided to the City shall be on a form approved by the 
City and include, but not be limited to: 

 
1. The name, legal status (i.e. partnership, corporation, etc.), 
street address, email address, and telephone and facsimile 
numbers of the Utility filing the Registration Statement (the 
“Registrant”).  If the Registrant is not the owner of the Facility in 
the Right of Way, the Registration shall include the name, street 
address, email address if applicable, and telephone and facsimile 
numbers of the owner;   
 
2. The name, street address, email address if applicable and 
telephone and facsimile numbers of one (1) or more Facilities 
Representative(s). Current information regarding how to contact 
the Facilities Representative(s) in an Emergency shall be provided 
at the time of filing a Registration and shall be updated as 
necessary to assure accurate contact information is available to the 
City at all times; 
 
3. A copy, if requested, of the Utility’s certificate of authority (or 
other acceptable evidence of authority to operate) from the Georgia 
Public Service Commission and/or the FCC and any other similar 
approvals, permits, or agreements. 
 
4. A copy, if requested, of the Service Agreement, if applicable 
or other legal instrument that authorizes the Utility to use or 
occupy the Right of Way for the purpose described in the 
Registration. 

 
Section 18-77.3 Incomplete Registration.  If a Registration is 
incomplete, the Director shall notify the Registrant and shall 
provide a reasonable period of time in which to complete the 
Registration. If a Registration is complete, the Director shall so 
notify the Utility in writing. 
 
Section 18-77.4 Acceptance of the Registration shall not convey 
title in the Rights of Way.  Acceptance of the Registration is only 
the nonexclusive, limited right to occupy Rights of Way in the City 
for the limited purposes stated in the Acceptance.  Acceptance of 
the Registration does not excuse a Utility from obtaining Permits 
required by City ordinances nor from obtaining appropriate access 
or pole attachment agreements before using the Facilities of others, 
including the City.  Acceptance of the Registration does not excuse 
a Utility from notifying the City of Construction as required herein. 
 
Section 18-77.5 Facilities in Place without Registration.  
Beginning one year after the effective date of this Chapter, any 



6 
 

Facilities or part of a Facility found in a Right of Way for which 
registration is required but has not been obtained unless 
specifically exempted by law, and for which no valid Service 
Agreement exists with the City, may be deemed to be a nuisance 
and an unauthorized use of the Rights of Way.  The City may 
exercise any remedies or rights it has at law or in equity, including, 
but not limited to abating the nuisance; taking possession of the 
Facilities, evicting the Utility from the Right of Way; prosecuting the 
violator; and/or any other remedy provided by City ordinance or 
otherwise allowed in law or in equity. 

 
  SECTION 18-78.  CONSTRUCTION PERMITS 

 
Section 18-78.1 Permit Required.  It shall be unlawful for any 
Utility to excavate or to construct, install, maintain, renew, remove 
or relocate Facilities in, on, along, over or under the public roads of 
the City without a Utility permit from the Public Works Department  
in accordance with the terms of this Chapter. 
 
Section 18-78.2 Permit Procedure.  Utility Permits shall be 
obtained from the Director (or such other person as the City 
Manager may designate) upon application made on forms 
prescribed by the Public Works Department. The written 
application shall include the following: 

 
1. The name and address of the Utility; 
 
2. The nature, extent, and location of any work proposed to be 
done, along with satisfactory plans as attachments showing in 
detail the location of the proposed Facility or operations as 
described in the Permit application. The plans shall show the size 
or capacity of Facilities to be installed; their relationship to Street 
features such as right-of-way lines, pavement edge, structures, 
including poles, boxes or other Utility Facilities, etc., horizontal and 
vertical clearance to critical elements of the roadway and any other 
information necessary to evaluate the impact on the Street and its 
operation; 
 
3. The name and address of the person or firm who is to do 
such work;  
 
4. The name, street address, email address if applicable and 
telephone and facsimile numbers of one (1) or more Facilities 
Representative(s). 
 
5. The projected dates for the work to be started and finished;  
 
6. An indemnity bond or other acceptable security in an 
amount to be set by the City to pay any damages to any part of the 
City road system or other City property or to any city employee or 



7 
 

member of the public caused by activity or work of the Utility 
performed under authority of the permit issued;  
7. A copy, if requested, of the Registrant’s certificate of 
authority (or other acceptable evidence of authority to operate) from 
the Georgia Public Service Commission and/or the FCC and any 
other similar approvals, permits, or agreements; and 
 
8. A copy, if requested, of the service agreement, if applicable 
or other legal instrument that authorizes the Utility to use or 
occupy the Right of Way for the purpose described in the 
application. 

 
Section 18-78.3 Permit Fees. Fees shall be determined by the 
Public Works Director, subject to the approval by resolution of the 
City Council. A fee schedule shall be available at the offices of the 
Public Works Director and the City Clerk and open for public 
inspection.  
 
Section 18-74.4 Issuance of Permit. If the Public Works Director 
determines the Applicant has satisfied the following requirements, 
the Public Works Director may issue a permit.  

 
 1. Whether issuing of the approval will be consistent 
with this Chapter; and 
 
 2. Whether Applicant has submitted a complete 
Application and has secured all certificates and other 
authorizations required by law, if applicable, in order to construct 
Facilities in the manner proposed by the Applicant; and 
 
 3. The impact on safety, visual quality of the streets, 
traffic flow, and other users of the right of way and the difficulty 
and length of time of the Project, construction or maintenance. 
 
Section 18-78.5 Emergency Situations. 
 
1. Each Utility shall, as soon as reasonably practicable, notify 
the Public Works Director of any event regarding its Facilities 
which it considers to be an Emergency.  The Utility may proceed to 
take whatever actions are necessary in order to respond to the 
Emergency.  A Utility who engages in an emergency excavation 
shall take all reasonable precautions to avoid or minimize damage 
to any existing facilities.   
 
2. In the event that the City becomes aware of an Emergency 
regarding Utility Facilities, the City may attempt to contact the 
affected Utility or Facilities Representative.  The City may take 
whatever action it deems necessary in order to respond to the 
Emergency, including cut or move any of the wires, cables, 
amplifiers, appliances, or other parts of the Facilities. The City 



8 
 

shall not incur any liability to the Utility, for such emergency 
actions, and the cost of such shall be paid by each Utility affected 
by the Emergency  
Section 18-78.6 Effective Period of Permit. 

 
1. Each permit shall have a set commencement and expiration 

date based on information provided in the applicant’s permit 
application. 
 

 2. The Permit shall remain in place Construction is completed or 
until its expiration date unless the Utility is in default. The 
Public Works Director may give written notice of default to a 
Utility if it is determined that a Utility has  
 
a. Violated any provision or requirement of the issuance or 
acceptance of a Permit application or any law of the City, state, 
or federal government; 
 
b. Attempted to evade any provision or requirement of this 
Chapter;  
 
c. Practiced any fraud or deceit upon the City; or 
 
d. Made a material misrepresentation or omission of fact in its 
Permit application. 
 
Section 18-78.7  Cancellation for Cause.  If a Utility fails 
to cure a default within twenty (20) Working Days after such 
notice is provided to the Utility by the City, then such default 
shall be a material breach and City may exercise any remedies 
or rights it has at law or in equity to terminate the Permit.  If 
the Director decides there is cause or reason to terminate, the 
following procedure shall be followed: 

 
1. City shall serve a Utility with a written notice of the reason 
or cause for proposed termination and shall allow a Utility a 
minimum of fifteen (15) calendar days to cure its breach. 
 
2. If the Utility fails to cure within fifteen (15) calendar days, 
the City may declare the Permit terminated. 
 
Section 18-78.8  Expiration of Permit.  If work is not 
begun within six (6) months of the date of issuance, the permit 
will automatically expire. 
 
SECTION 18.79.  REQUIRED MINIMUM STANDARDS  
  
Section 18-79.1  Utility Accommodation Manual 
Adopted. The  Utility Accommodation Policy and Standards 
manual, including all references contained therein to codes, 



9 
 

rules, regulations, schedules, forms and appendix items, 
except Appendix B (Permit Forms and supporting Documents), 
promulgated by the State of Georgia Department of 
Transportation, as may be amended from time to time is hereby 
adopted by reference and incorporated in the article as if fully 
set forth herein, subject to the amendments and modification 
contained in this Chapter. A copy of the manual shall be 
maintained at the offices of the Director or his designee and 
open for public inspection. Any conflicts between the 
provisions of this ordinance and the manual shall be resolved 
in favor of the manual. References to State personnel, agencies, 
and fees shall be interpreted, where required, as meaning the 
City of Newnan municipal equivalents 

 
Section 18.79.2  Protection of Traffic and Roadway.  
Unless specifically in the Permit, no Utility may occupy the City 
Rights of Way unless sufficient space is available so that the 
free flow and safety of traffic and other capacity considerations 
are not unduly impaired and the installation does not prevent 
the Department from reasonably maintaining the streets, 
structures, traffic control devices and other appurtenant 
facilities, and further provided that maintenance and 
operations of the Facilities do not jeopardize the traffic, street 
structure, other users of the right of way or the right of way 
itself. 
 
Section 18.79.3  Grading: If the grades or lines of any 
street within the City Right of Way are changed at any time by 
the City during the term of the permit and this change involves 
an area in which the Utility’s Facilities are located, then the 
Utility shall, at its own cost and expense and upon the request 
of the City upon reasonable notice, protect or promptly alter or 
relocate the Facilities, or any part thereof, so as to conform 
with such new grades or lines.  In the event the Utility refuses 
or neglects to so protect, alter, or relocate all or part of the 
Facilities, the City shall have the right to break through, 
remove, alter, or relocated all or any part of the Facilities 
without any liability to the Utility and the Utility shall pay to 
the City the costs incurred in connection with such breaking 
through, removal, alteration, or relocation. 

 
Section 18.79.4  Installation of Poles and Other 
Wireholding Structures and Relocation.  Unless otherwise 
provided in a valid service agreement, no placement of any pole 
or wireholding structure of the Utility is to be considered a 
vested interest in the Right of Way, and such poles or 
structures are to be removed, relocated underground, or 
modified by the Utility at its own expense whenever the City 
determines that the public convenience would be enhanced 
thereby. The Facilities shall be so located and installed as to 



10 
 

cause minimum interference with the rights and convenience 
of property owners.   
 
Section 18-79.5  As provided in O.C.G.A § 25-9-6 
(the Georgia Utility Facility Protection Act) and other applicable 
state law currently in place or as amended, no Utility shall 
commence, perform, or engage in blasting or in excavating with 
mechanized excavating facilities unless and until the Utility 
planning the blasting or excavating has given 48 hours' notice 
by submitting a locate request to the Utility Protection Center, 
beginning the next Working Day after such notice is provided, 
excluding hours during days other than Working Days. 
 

SECTION 18-80. RESTORATION OF PROPERTY 
 
Section 18-80.1 Each Utility shall be responsible for the cost of 
repairing any Facilities in the Rights of Way and adjoining property 
or other Facilities which it or its Facilities damage.  
 
Section 18-80.2 A Utility shall be liable, at its own cost and 
expense, to replace, restore or repair, any Street, Facilities or 
property or structure thereon, thereunder, thereover or adjacent 
thereto that may become disturbed or damaged as a result of the 
Construction or installation, operation, upgrade, repair or removal 
of Facilities to a condition as good as or better than its condition 
before the work performed by the Utility that caused such 
disturbance or damage. If the Utility does not commence such 
replacement or repair after twenty (20) Working Days following 
written notice from the City, the City or the owner of the affected 
structure or property may make such replacement or repair and 
the Utility shall pay the reasonable and actual cost of the same. 
 
SECTION 18-81.  INSPECTION 

 
Section 18-81.1 The Utility shall make the Construction site 
available to the Director and to all others as authorized by Law for 
inspection at all reasonable times during the execution and upon 
completion of the Construction. 

 
Section 18-81.2 At any time, including the time of inspection, 
the Director may order the immediate cessation of any work which 
poses a serious threat to the health, safety, or welfare of the public, 
violates any law, or which violates the terms and conditions of the 
Permit and/or any other provisions of this Article III or issue an 
order to correct work which does not conform to the Permit and/or 
applicable standards, conditions or codes. 

 
Section 18-81.3 When the Construction under any Permit is 
completed, the Utility shall notify the Department and furnish to 
the Department Asbuilt drawings of the completed Facility or 



11 
 

Facilities in a format acceptable to the City detailing all structures 
installed or replaced including poles, boxes, and any underground 
elements of the Facility or Facilities. 

  SETION 18-82. OTHER APPROVALS, PERMITS AND   
     AGREEMENTS  

 
Section 18-82.1 Additional Permits Required. The Utility shall 
obtain all construction, building or other permits or approvals as 
according to City ordinance, state or federal law.  In addition, a 
Permittee shall comply with all requirements of laws, shall 
complete work in a way as to not cause any unnecessary or 
unauthorized obstructions of sidewalks, streets, waterways or 
railways, and is responsible for all work done in the Rights of Way 
regardless of who performs the work. No Rights of Way obstruction 
or excavation may be performed when seasonally prohibited or 
when conditions are unreasonable for such work, except in the 
case of an Emergency as outlined in Article II, Section 7 (B). 

 
 SECTION 18-83. PENALTIES 
 

Section 18-83.1 Every Utility convicted of a violation of any 
provision of this chapter shall be punished by a fine not exceeding 
one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) per violation. Each act of 
violation and each day upon which any such violation shall occur 
shall constitute a separate offense. In addition to the penalty 
prescribed above, the city may pursue other remedies such as 
abatement of nuisances, injunctive relief and revocation of 
licenses or permits. 
 
SECTION 18-84 AESTHETIC STANDARDS 

 
Section 18-84.1 Authority and Scope.   

(a) O.C.G.A. §32-4-92(a)(10) / 32-4-42 (6) authorizes the City of 
Newnan Georgia(City) to establish reasonable regulations for the 
installation, construction, maintenance, renewal, removal, and relocation 
of pipes, mains, conduits, cables, wires, poles, towers, traffic and other 
signals, and other equipment, facilities, or appliances in, on, along, over, 
or under the public roads of the City.  Further, 47 U.S.C. § 253(c) provides 
that the City has authority to manage its public rights of way.   

(b) The City finds it is in the best interest of the City and its 
residents and businesses to establish aesthetic requirements and other 
specifications and reasonable conditions regarding placement of facilities 
in the public rights of way.  These requirements, specifications and 
conditions are adopted in order to protect the public health, safety and 
welfare of the residents and businesses of the City and to reasonably 
manage and protect the public rights of way and its uses in the City. 



12 
 

(c) The objective of this Article is to ensure use of the public 
rights of way: (i) is consistent with the design, appearance and other 
features of nearby land uses; (ii) protects the integrity of historic, cultural 
and scenic resources; and (iii) does not harm residents’ quality of life.    

(d) This Article applies to all requests to locate facilities in the 
public rights of way and ongoing use of the public rights of way for such 
facilities. This Article is established pursuant to the City Charter and 
applicable law. This Article is administered by the Planning Department of 
the City of Newnan (Planning Department). 

(e) Placement or modification of facilities in the public right of 
way shall comply with this Article at the time the permit for installation or 
modification is approved and as amended from time to time. Permittees 
are required to comply with City Codes and applicable law and 
regulations. 

Section 18-84.2 Definitions.  Unless otherwise defined in Section 18-
76.3 and Section 18-231 terms used in this Article shall have the 
meanings given them in O.C.G.A. § 36-66C-2. 

Section 18-84.3 Cross References.  Definitions in this Article include 
references and citations to applicable federal and state laws.  In the event 
that any referenced section is amended, the definition in the referenced 
section, as amended, shall control. 

Section 18-84.4 Facilities Standards. 

(a) Facilities must be compatible in size, mass, and color to 
similar facilities in the same zoning area, with a goal of minimizing 
the physical and visual impact on the area. 

(b) Facilities in residential, historical and/or architecturally 
significant areas shall be visually and architecturally integrated 
with such significant areas and shall not interfere with prominent 
vistas or significant public view corridors. 

(c) Facilities must be located in alignment with existing trees 
and/or facilities. 

(d) Facilities must maintain the integrity and character of the 
neighborhoods and corridors in which the facilities are located 

Section. 18-84.5  Undergrounding.  Except as provided in Section 18-
84.5 (a) and (b), Facilities shall be installed underground in all areas in 
the City in which Utility Facilities are located underground so long as 
placement underground will not materially impact the provision of service.  
Any individual requesting to locate facilities above ground in all areas in 
the City in which Utility Facilities are located underground has the 
burden to demonstrate by clear and convincing evidence that 



13 
 

undergrounding will effectively prohibit the provision of the service in 
question. 

(a) Light poles and small wireless facilities collocated thereon 
may be located above ground in areas of the City where facilities 
are primarily located underground. 

(b) The City may: (i) allow collocated small wireless facilities 
placed aboveground prior to the effective date of this Ordinance 
and subject to any applicable pole attachment agreement to remain 
above ground; or (ii) allow the wireless provider to replace the pole 
associated with previously collocated small wireless facilities at the 
same location or propose an alternate location within 50 feet of the 
prior location, which the wireless provider shall use unless such 
alternate location imposes technical limits or significant additional 
costs. 

Section -18-84.6 Camouflaging.  Facilities must be designed using 
camouflaging techniques that make them as unobtrusive as possible if: 

(a) It is not possible or desirable to match the design and color 
of facilities with the similar facilities in the same zoning area, as 
required under Section 18-84.4(b) or 

(b) Existing facilities in the area are out of character with a 
streetscape plan or other aesthetic plan that has been adopted by 
the City. 

Section.18-84.8 Concealment.  Facilities shall incorporate specific 
concealment elements to minimize visual impacts. 

Section 18-84.8 Installation and Modification Standards.  Installation 
of new facilities in, on, along, over, or under the public rights of way or 
modification of existing facilities in, on, along, over, or under the public 
rights of way shall: 

(a) Minimize risks to public safety; 

(b) Ensure that placement of facilities on existing structures is 
within the tolerance of those structures; 

(c) Ensure that installations and modifications are subject to 
periodic review to minimize the intrusion on the right of way; 

(d) Ensure that the City bears no risk or liability as a result of 
the installations or modifications; and 

(e) Ensure that use of the public rights of way does not 
inconvenience the public, interfere with the primary uses of the 
public rights of way, or hinder the ability of the City or other 
government entities to improve, modify, relocate, abandon, or 



14 
 

vacate the right of way or any portion thereof, or to cause the 
improvement, modification, relocation, vacation, or abandonment of 
facilities in the right of way. 

Section 18-84.9 Plans for Use.  No facilities shall be placed in, on, 
along, over, or under the public rights of way unless: (i) there are 
immediate plans to use the proposed facility; or (ii) there is a contract 
with another party that has immediate plans to use the proposed facility. 

Section 18-84.10 Contact Information.  Every facility placed in the 
public rights of way shall at all times display signage that accurately 
identifies the facility owner and provides the facility owner’s unique site 
number, and also provides a local or toll-free telephone number to contact 
the facility owner’s operations center.   

 SECTION 18-85.   OTHER PROVISIONS 
 

Section 18-85.1 Severability.  If any section, subsection, 
sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Chapter is for any 
reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court or 
administrative agency of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall 
be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such 
holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions 
thereof. 
 
Section 18-85.2 Reservation of Regulatory and Police Powers.  
The City by issuing a written approval of Registration under this 
Chapter, does not surrender or to any extent lose, waive, impair, or 
lessen the lawful powers and rights, which it has now or may be 
hereafter vested in the City under the Constitution and Laws of the 
United States, State of Georgia and the City Charter, and under the 
provisions of the City’s Codified Ordinances to regulate the use of 
the Rights of Way.  The Utility by applying for and being issued a 
written Permit, is deemed to acknowledge that all lawful powers 
and rights, regulatory power, or police power, or otherwise as are or 
the same may be from time to time vested in or reserved to the 
City, shall be in full force and effect and subject to the exercise 
thereof by the City at any time.  A Utility is deemed to acknowledge 
that its interests are subject to the regulatory and police powers of 
the City to adopt and enforce general ordinances necessary to the 
safety and welfare of the public and is deemed to agree to comply 
with all applicable general laws enacted by the City pursuant to 
such powers.  In particular, all Utilities shall comply with City 
zoning and other land use requirements pertaining to the 
placement and specifications of Facilities. 
 
Section 18-85.3 Compliance.  No Person shall be relieved of its 
obligation to comply with any of the provisions of this Chapter by 
reason of any failure of City to enforce compliance. 

 



15 
 

Section 18-85.4 Appeal of Administrative Decisions.  All appeals 
provided for by this chapter and any notification to the City 
required by this Chapter shall be in writing and sent via certified 
mail to the Director as specified in this Chapter. 
 
Section 18-85.5 Chapter Headings. Chapter headings are for 
convenience only and shall not be used to interpret any portion of 
this Chapter 

 
SECTION II.   Except as provided otherwise herein, all ordinances or parts of 
ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed.  
 
SECTION III.  This ordinance shall be codified in a manner consistent with the 
laws of the State of Georgia 
 
SECTION IV.  This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its 
adoption by the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan.  
 
 SO ORDAINED this ________ day of _________________________, 2019.  
 
 
 
ATTEST:     ___________________________________ 
      L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Della Hill, City Clerk     
      ___________________________________ 
      Cynthia E. Jenkins, Mayor Pro-Tem 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney George M. Alexander, Councilmember 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager  Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Rhodes H. Shell, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Dustin Koritko, Councilmember 
 
 
      _________________________________ 

Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: September 10, 2019 
 
 
Agenda Item:  WWI Plaque / Veteran’s Plaza     
 
 
Presented by:  Cleatus Phillips  

 
 
Purpose:   Consider and offer staff direction concerning an update to the WWI Plaque at the 

Veteran’s Memorial Plaza 
 
 
Background: The City of Newnan was honored to participate in establishing the Veteran’s 

Memorial Plaza to recognize individuals who made major sacrifices in order to 
preserve our human freedoms and a great effort was put forth by the Veteran’s 
Committee that was selected to accomplish this undertaking.  This included 
bronze plaques along the “Wall of Honor” including a WWI plaque.  Dick Stender, 
one of the surviving members of the committee was given a list of names and 
was told they should be added to the plaque.  He researched the names and in 
2018 presented the list of names to the City.  He indicated that the names should 
be added to the plaque along with one name to be removed as it had been 
mistakenly placed on the plaque.  All of the additional names listed could be 
found under the website World War 1 Centennial in the Georgia Coweta County 
section, however, additional names were also located that seem to fall into the 
category for this plaque and should also possibly be added.  There is much 
concern in making any changes to the original plaque as the Veterans Memorial 
Plaza Committee well-researched and vetted the names that were placed on the 
WWI plaque, as well as all of the plaques in the Plaza, for accuracy.  As methods 
and abilities to research has continued to improve, since the 2007/8 installation, 
the discovery of missing information is expected. 

 
    
Funding: $4,124.84 – Veteran’s Memorial Plaza – Apply to the cost of a new plaque 
 
Attachments: Photo of World War I “The Great War” Plaque / List of names requested 

to be added and one to be removed / Current findings under the WW1 
Centennial for Coweta County 

 
Recommendation:  

1. Staff direction 
 
  
Previous Discussion with Council:   N/A    
 







https://www.worldwar1centennial.org/index.php/georgia-memorial-database.html 

Georgia Memorial Database 
This interactive database represents the latest effort to develop a comprehensive listing of those from Georgia that died in the service to 
their country during The Great War.  The core of this listing is the original Georgia State Memorial Book, published in 1921. It contains the 
names and information for approximately 1,200 Georgia military personnel that died of all causes during World War 1.  

Due to the social and racial conditions and practices of the time, this 1921 Memorial Book contains the information for only white soldiers. 
The current project is rectifying this by adding information for Georgia's African-American personnel that also died in service.  

Fortunately, the Georgia Department of Veterans Service has developed a listing of WW1 deaths.  This GDVS list, containing some 
1,900 names, incorporates the Memorial Book names and adds another 700, many of whom are African-American.  The entirety of the 
GDVS list is now incorporated into the Georgia Memorial Database, below. 

Additionally, monuments, memorials, and plaques throughout the state of Georgia are yielding names for this Memorial Database that do 
not appear in either of the two earlier lists.  These names are being added as the memorials and plaques are identified and photographed 
for inclusion elsewhere in this website.  

 Please direct all correspondence related additions and corrections to Dr. Lamar Veatch -  lveatch@gmail.com 

 

 

Rank Name
 

County
 

City
 

Death date Eth. Citations Disposition Photo 

PVT Allen, Edward Coweta Newnan 11-Oct-1918 AA Coweta, GDC influenza no 

PVT Amy, Venson Coweta Newnan 6-Oct-1919 AA GDC, Coweta pneumonia 
 

 
Brooks, Robert A. Coweta 

 
unknown 

 
Coweta unknown no 

CPL Brooks, Thomas Coweta Grantville 4-Oct-1918 AA Coweta, GDC, Knight influenza no 

PFC Clerk, Ernest Coweta Newnan 20-Jul-1919 AA Coweta, GDC tuberculosis no 

PVT Couch, Willie (William) Carroll Whitesburg 5/28/1918 AA Coweta, GDC, ABMC, Knight pneumonia no 

PVT Dorsey, Arthur Coweta Senoia 14-Oct-1918 AA GDC infection 
 



Rank Name
 

County
 

City
 

Death date Eth. Citations Disposition Photo 

PFC Elliott, Ben Coweta Newnan 29-Oct-1918 AA Coweta, GDVS, GDC, 
ABMC, Knight 

pneumonia no 

Fireman Fincher, Jesse Curtis Coweta Newnan 14-Jun-1918 W Coweta, GDVS, GDC missing vessel no 

App. 
Seaman 

Gentry, Homer E. Coweta Newnan 22-Oct-1918 W MB 059, Coweta, GDC, 
Knight, UGA 

infection yes 

Yeoman Hardaway, Carey Joseph Coweta Newnan 29-Sep-1918 W MB 061, Coweta, GDC, 
Knight 

drowned yes 

PVT Harris, Alvin Hugh Coweta Newnan 6-Jun-1918 W MB 061, Coweta, GDC, 
Knight 

wounds (14) yes 

Wagoner Harris, Marvin Sperman Coweta Newnan 11-Jan-1918 W MB 061, Coweta, GDC, 
Knight 

storm death - Camp 
Wheeler 

yes 

PVT Haynie, Louis A. Coweta Newnan 1-Nov-1918 W MB 061, Coweta, ABMC, 
GDC, Knight 

wounds yes 

PVT Hubbard, Marvin A. Coweta Senoia 24-Oct-1918 W Coweta, GDC infection no 

PVT Jackson, Eddie Coweta Newnan 16-Dec-1917 AA Coweta, GDC tuberculosis no 

PVT Johnson, Calvin Coweta Moreland 8-Oct-1918 W GDC pneumonia 
 

PVT Lambert, Jonnie Will Coweta Newnan 18-Jul-1918 W MB 061, Coweta, GDC, 
Knight 

wounds yes 

PVT Leach, Charlton Samuel Coweta Newnan 4-Nov-1918 W MB 061, Coweta, GDC, 
Knight 

KIA - Argonne 
Forest 

yes 

PVT Lee, Tommie Clinton Coweta Senoia 25-Nov-1918 W MB 061, Coweta, GDC, 
Knight 

pneumonia yes 

PVT Long, Thelbert R. Coweta Sargent 3-Oct-1917 W GDC pneumonia 
 

PVT McCombs, George 
Arthur 

Coweta Madras 26-Aug-1918 AA Coweta, GDC pneumonia no 

PVT McGee, Charles N. Coweta Moreland rep. 
23dec1918 

 
Knight unknown 

 

PVT McGhee, Charles 
Norman 

Coweta Moreland 11/8/1918 W Coweta, GDVS, GDC KIA no 

PVT McKee, John Franklein Coweta Moreland 12/3/1917 W MB 061, Coweta, GDC, 
Knight 

pneumonia yes 

PVT Moreland, Ernest Coweta Grantville 20-Nov-1918 AA Coweta, GDC pneumonia no 

PVT Neely, Tom (Thomas) Coweta Newnan rep. 
17sept1921 

AA Coweta, Knight disease - France no 



Rank Name
 

County
 

City
 

Death date Eth. Citations Disposition Photo 

PVT Nixon, Ben Loyd Coweta Senoia 18-Oct-1918 W Coweta, GDC, Knight infection no 

PFC Padgett, Parker I. (J.) Fulton Palmetto 5-Nov-1918 W MB 037, Coweta, GDC, 
Knight 

influenza - France yes 

PVT Phillips, George 
Washington 

Senoia Coweta 4-Aug-1918 W MB 081, GDC, Knight infection yes 

PVT Pitman, Walter Albert Coweta Newnan 17-Oct-1918 W MB 061, Coweta, Knight infection yes 

PVT Pittman, Walter Albert Coweta Newnan 17-Oct-1918 W GDC pneumonia 
 

PVT Pullen, Isaiah Coweta Grantville 15-Nov-1918 AA Coweta, GDC, Knight tuberculosis no 
 

Rainey, Everett D. Heard Franklin 10/8/1918 W Coweta, GDC, Knight pneumonia no 

PVT Rooks, Samuel I. Carroll Carrollton 3-Nov-1918 W MB 041, Coweta, Carroll, 
ABMC, GDC, Knight 

KIA yes 

PVT Smith, Alf Coweta Sargents unknown 
 

Knight unknown 
 

PVT Smith, James Alfred Coweta Sargent 29-May-1918 W MB 061, Coweta, GDC, 
Knight 

wounds yes 

PVT Smith, Paul Campbell Palmetto 9-Oct-1918 AA Fairburn, ABMC, GDVS, 
GDC, Coweta, Knight 

infection - France 
 

PVT Stegall, Ed. Coweta New 17-May-1918 AA Coweta, GDC pneumonia no 
 

Stevens, James Coweta 
 

unknown AA Coweta unknown no 

PVT Suggart, Albert M. Coweta Haralson rep. 
6feb1919 

 
Knight disease 

 

Cook Sullen, Isiah Coweta Grantville 
  

GDVS unknown 
 

PVT Swygert, Albert Martin Coweta Haralson 29-Sep-1918 W MB 061, Coweta, ABMC, 
GDC, Knight 

spinal meningitis yes 

PVT Trouten, Millard T. Coweta Newnan rep. 
29oct1918 

 
GDVS, Knight-reported alive unknown 

 

PVT Walker, Will Coweta Newnan 13-Dec-1918 AA GDC empymea 
 

PVT Whattley, John Coweta Turin 27-Oct-1918 W GDVS, GDC, ABMC, Knight pneumonia - 
France 

 

 



A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING  

 GOSP GRANT APPLICATION  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Newnan, Mayor and Council and the City Manager are in full support of 
the application of the Georgia Outdoor Stewardship Program Grant to assist in the funding of the 
Newnan LINC Downtown Connector; and  

WHEREAS, the Newnan LINC Downtown Connector is scheduled to be complete in 2021; and  

WHEREAS, the LINC Downtown Connector budget has a funds deficit of $2,500,000; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Newnan is in a strong financial position to commit 75% > matching funds 
to match the GOSP grant funds for the Newnan LINC Downtown Connector through a 
combination of SPLOST 2019 and Impact Fees; and   

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Newnan shall authorize the 
support of the application of the Georgia Outdoor Stewardship Program Grant to assist in the 
funding of the Newnan LINC Downtown Connector; 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GEORGIA OUTDOOR STEWARDSHIP PROGRAM 
GRANT APPLICATION 
 
DONE, RATIFIED AND PASSED in regular session, this the ______ day of ____________, 
2019. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________   _______________________________ 
Della Hill, City Clerk     L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
 
REVIEWED:      _______________________________ 
       Cynthia E. Jenkins, Mayor Pro Tem 
_____________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager   _______________________________ 
       George M. Alexander, Councilmember 
 
_____________________________   _______________________________ 
Brad Sears, City Attorney    Rhodes H. Shell, Councilmember 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Ray F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Dustin K. Koritko, Councilmember 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Paul L. Guillaume, Councilmember 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council

Date: September 24, 2019

Agenda Item:  Consideration of a Resolution of Commitment to Support the 
Long –Term Maintenance of the LINC

Prepared and Present by:  Hasco Craver, Assistant City Manager

Purpose: Newnan City Council may consider a Resolution of Commitment to Support the Long-
Term Maintenance of the LINC. 

Background:

City Staff is currently in the process of applying for a GOSP (Georgia Outdoor Stewardship 
Program Grant) to assist with the funding of Phase II – Newnan LINC Downtown Connector.

This grant is managed by the Georgia Department of Natural Resources and is geared toward 
conservation of properties for natural resources and to provide outdoor recreation to Georgia 
residents. One of the grant criteria’s is to show support of the LINC long – term maintenance 
and a resolution would satisfy this criteria.  

Funding: N/A

Recommendation: Newnan City Council may adopt the proposed resolution of Commitment to 
Support the Long-Term Maintenance of the LINC. 

Attachments:

1. Resolution of Commitment to Support the Long-Term Maintenance of the LINC
2. Pages from the GOSP Grant explaining this requirement.

Previous Discussions with Council:



A RESOLUTION OF COMMITTMENT

TO SUPPORT THE LONG-TERM MAINTENANCE OF THE LINC

WHEREAS, the City of Newnan, Mayor and Council and the City Manager are in full support of 
constructing the LINC; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Newnan is in a strong financial position to commit resources to maintain 
the LINC; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Newnan annually approves a Beautification Department budget for 
maintaining City Parks; and  

WHEREAS, the LINC is considered a linear park which falls under the maintenance responsibility 
of the Beautification Department; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Newnan shall authorize the 
support of the long-term maintenance of the LINC including but not limited to, mowing, maintaining 
signage, trash and debris pick-up and other amenity maintenance as needed;

A RESOLUTION OF COMMITTMENT TO SUPPPORT THE LONG-TERM MAINTENANCE OF 
THE LINC

DONE, RATIFIED AND PASSED in regular session, this the ______ day of ____________, 
2019.

ATTEST:

__________________________ _______________________________
Della Hill, City Clerk L. Keith Brady, Mayor

REVIEWED: _______________________________
Cynthia E. Jenkins, Mayor Pro Tem

_____________________________
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager _______________________________

George M. Alexander, Councilmember

_____________________________ _______________________________
Brad Sears, City Attorney Rhodes H. Shell, Councilmember

_______________________________
Ray F. DuBose, Councilmember

_______________________________
Dustin K. Koritko, Councilmember

_______________________________
Paul L. Guillaume, Councilmember



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date:  September 24, 2019 
 
Agenda Item:  Rezoning Request RZ2019-07, WP South Acquisitions, 

LLC for 22.485 ± acres located at the corner of Bullsboro 
Drive and Ashley Park Drive (Tax Parcel # 086 5054 9960) 

 
Prepared and Presented by:  Tracy S. Dunnavant, Planning Director 
 

 
Purpose:     To inform the City Council that RZ2019-07 is before the Planning Commission for 
consideration and a recommendation on the requested zoning classification. 
 
Background:     WP South Acquisitions, LLC has applied for the rezoning of 22.485 ± acres 
located at the corner of Bullsboro Drive and Ashley Park Drive.  The request is to rezone the 
property from CGN (General Commercial District) to RMH (Residential Multiple-Family Dwelling 
– Higher Density District) for the purpose of constructing 269 apartment units. 
 

Current Zoning 
 

Tax Parcel # Acres Zoning Units 
086 5054 

9960 
22.485± CGN N/A 

 
Requested Zoning 

 
Tax Parcel # Acres Zoning Units 

086 5054 
9960 

22.485± RMH 269 
proposed 

 
 

Attachments:  Application for Rezoning 
   Location Map 
    
Previous Discussions with Council:   None 



BULLSBORO DR

AS
H

LE
Y 

PA
R

K
 D

RASH
LEY PAR

K BLVD

ASHLEY PARK SHOPPING CENTER

BULLSBORO DR

0

174

370

0

211

216 214

314

230

295

0

0

0

0

301232

226

238

CITY OF NEWNAN  | Project Location

1 inch = 250 feet

CITY OF NEWNAN
PLANNING DEPT. 

25 LAGRANGE STREET
NEWNAN, GEORGIA 30263

www.ci.newnan.ga.us

N LEGEND
CITY LIMITS

Project Location

PARCELS

Bullsboro Dr @ Ashley Park BLVD
NEWNAN GA. 30263

ADDRESS

§̈¦85

UV34
SITE































































City of Newnan, Mayor and Council 

Administrative Services for the 2020 CDBG Grant

Prepared and Presented by:  Tracy S. Dunnavant, Planning Director

Purpose:     To consider approval for application development and administrative services
related to the City’s 2020 CDBG application.

Background:     As you are aware, Staff was directed to seek RFPs for application 
development and administrative services associated with the development of a 2020 CDBG 
grant.  RFP submittal requirements were duly advertised and potential firms were given until 
August 6, 2019 at 10:00 a.m. to respond.   At the end of the response period, the City received 
a single submittal from Gilbert and Associates, Inc.  Upon review of their application, it was 
determined that the bid was valid and met all of the requirements specified in the City’s RFP.

Since only a single bid was received, the City had to seek sole source approval from the 
Georgia Department of Community Affairs (DCA).  On September 6, 2019, the City was notified 
that the approval had been granted and therefore; could move forward with awarding the 
contract.  

Options:

A. Award the contract to Gilbert and Associates, Inc. for CDBG application 
development at a cost not to exceed $8,500 and for administrative services, if the 
grant is awarded, not to exceed 7% of the CDBG grant amount

B. Re-bid the contract
C. Other action as determined by Council

Recommendation:  Staff recommends “Option A”, award the contract to Gilbert and 
Associates, Inc.

Funding Source: Fund Balance

Previous Discussions with Council: May 28, 2019

Date:  September 24, 2019 

Agenda Item:  Consider Approval for Application Development and 





















City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date:    September 24, 2019  
 
Agenda Item:   6 Glenn St, Newnan, Ga 30263 
 
Prepared and Presented by: 

Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
Submitted by:  Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 
 
 
Purpose:      New owner to update council on status and request an extension to repair 

or demolish concerning the dilapidated structure located at 6 Glenn St 
Newnan, Ga 30263 

 
 
Background: Owner: D. Free Management, LLC  
 
 Date Sub-Standard housing file was opened: April 25, 2018.   

Does the cost to bring this structure into compliance by means of repair 
exceed 50% of the structure’s assessed tax value? YES  
 
On April 25, 2018 the Building Department conducted an inspection of the 
premises. The structure has been determined to be unsafe as set forth by 
City Ordinance Section 5-24. (a), Sub-sections (3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10). 

Options: 
1. Adopt a resolution directing the property owner to either repair or 

demolish the structure within forty five (45) days. 
2. Other direction from Council. 

 
 
Funding:       Not Applicable 
 
 
Recommendation:   Staff is requesting Council’s approval to proceed with Option 1. 
       
 
Previous Discussions with Council:            
 
May 28, 2019 – Council informed of conditions.    
 
July 16, 2019 – Public Hearing was requested. 
 
August 27, 2019 – Public hearing was held concerning 6 Glenn St. Previous owner, Tikkun 
Olam, LP, did not attend. 30 day extension granted by council.  
    
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date:    September 24, 2019  
 
Agenda Item:   8 Glenn St, Newnan, Ga 30263 
 
Prepared and Presented by: 

Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
Submitted by:  Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 
 
 
Purpose:      Agenda item for public hearing to repair or demolish dilapidated structure 

located at 8 Glenn St Newnan, GA 30263 continued until September 24, 
2019 due a recent change in ownership. 

 
Background: Owner: D. Free Management, LLC 
 
 Date Sub-Standard housing file was opened: June 20, 2018.   

Does the cost to bring this structure into compliance by means of repair 
exceed 50% of the structure’s assessed tax value? YES  
 
On June 20, 2018 the Building Department conducted an inspection of 
the premises. The structure has been determined to be unsafe as set 
forth by City Ordinance Section 5-24. (a), Sub-sections (3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 
10). 

Options: 
1. Adopt a resolution directing the property owner to either repair or 

demolish the structure within forty five (45) days. 
2. Other direction from Council. 

 
 
Funding:       Not Applicable 
 
 
Recommendation:   Staff is requesting Council’s approval to proceed with Option 1. 
       
 
Previous Discussions with Council:            
 
May 28, 2019 – Council informed of conditions.    
 
July 16, 2019 – Public Hearing was requested. 
 
August 27, 2019 – Public hearing continued to 9/24/2019.  
    
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

After recording please return to: 

Della Hill, City of Newnan 

25 LaGrange Street 

Newnan, GA 30263 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
IN RE:  D. Free Management, LLC  Lien Holders: 

 8 Glenn Street    LaFayette Lending, LLC 

Newnan, Georgia 30263  Deed Book 4894 Page 583 

 Deed Book 4894 Page 581  Coweta County Tax Commissioner 

      City of Newnan   

   

WHEREAS, the property of D. Free Management, LLC located at 8 Glenn Street, 
Newnan, Georgia 30263, in the City of Newnan was alleged by the Building Official of the 
City to be an unsafe building, as defined by an Ordinance adopted by the Mayor and 
Council on October 10, 1977; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a hearing was set for the Mayor and Council to determine in accordance 
with the provisions of such Ordinance whether such building was in fact an unsafe building, 
as defined in such Ordinance and/or that the same was unsafe to the extent that it should be 
demolished or repaired; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of such hearing was given to the owner, lien holder and tenant, if 
any, as required by such Ordinance, and all other provisions of the Ordinance have been 
complied with; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan, after hearing 
evidence upon the question of whether such building is an unsafe building as defined by the 
Ordinance of the City of Newnan, do hereby determine that the building of D. Free 
Management, LLC located at 8 Glenn Street, Newnan, Georgia 30263, should be repaired or 
demolished, and the owner thereof is given __________________________ (______) days 
within which to repair or demolish and remove the same; 
 
 RESOLVED FURTHER, that in the event the owner shall fail to repair or demolish 
and remove the same within the period of __________________________ (______) days herein 
fixed, the Building Official of the City of Newnan is hereby ordered to repair or demolish 
and remove the same, and to prepare an itemization of the cost of such repair or demolition 
and removal, and deliver such itemization to the Clerk of the City of Newnan, who is 
ordered to issue an execution against the owner for the total cost of such repair or demolition 
and removal, which execution shall constitute a lien against such real estate as of the date of 
this resolution - all in accordance with the Ordinances of the City of Newnan. 



 
 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan this 
___ day of _______________, 2019. 
 
 
ATTEST:     ___________________________________ 
      L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Della Hill, City Clerk     
      ___________________________________ 
      Cynthia E. Jenkins, Mayor Pro-Tem 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney  George M.  Alexander, Councilmember 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager  Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Rhodes H. Shell, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Dustin Koritko, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 



 
 
 
IN RE:  D. Free Management, LLC  Lien Holders: 

 8 Glenn Street    LaFayette Lending, LLC 

Newnan, Georgia 30263  Deed Book 4894 Page 583 

 Deed Book 4894 Page 581  Coweta County Tax Commissioner 

      City of Newnan   

   

 
  
GEORGIA, COWETA COUNTY: 
` 
 
 The requirements of the resolution of the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan 

adopted on the _____ day of _________________, 2019 and recorded in Deed Book ______, 

Page _______ of the Deed Records of Coweta County, Georgia relating to property located at  

8 Glenn Street in the City of Newnan, Georgia having been complied with, the Clerk of 

Superior Court is authorized to enter this satisfaction thereof of record. 

 This ______ day of _____________________, 2019. 

 
 
      CITY OF NEWNAN 
 
      By:________________________________ 
         Building Official 
 
      Attest:_____________________________ 
         Clerk 
 
 
 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 
 
 



 

   City of Newnan, Georgia – Mayor and Council 
 

 

Date:    September 24, 2019 

 

Agenda Item: 280 W WASHINGTON ST 

 

Prepared and 

Presented by:   Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 

 

Submitted by:  Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 

 
Purpose: Owners to request a 180 day extension in order to complete repairs to 

structures located at 280 W WASHINGTON ST. 

 

 

Background:  Owner: IRVIN JONES ESTATE  
   Permits: None 
   Date Sub-Standard housing file was opened: December 4, 2014 
 

City staff was contacted by the tenants residing at two separate 
apartments located at 286 W. Washington St. to conduct a property 
maintenance inspection. Upon inspection, City staff noted violations 
existing in the two apartments and the interior and exterior of other 
separate structures located on the property as well. The structure has 
been determined to be unsafe as set forth by City Ordinance, Section 5-
24. (a), Sub-sections (3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10). 

 

Options: 1. Accept extension request from property owner. 

 

   2. Other direction from Council. 

 

Funding:  Not Applicable 

 

Recommendation: Option 1. 

 

Previous Discussions 
With Council:   

 

December 8, 2014 – Council informed of conditions. 

 

December 16, 2014 – Public Hearing Requested 

 

February 24, 2015 – Public Hearing Conducted 

 

April 14, 2015 – Progress 

 

May 12, 2015 – Progress 

 



June 9, 2015 – No Progress 

 

August 11, 2015 – No Progress – Owner Requesting Extension 

 

August 25, 2015 – No Progress - Extension Request Cont’d until September 8, 2015 

 

September 8, 2015 - No Progress - Extension Request Cont’d until September 21, 2015 

 

September 21, 2015 - No Progress - Extension Request Cont’d until October 15, 2015 

 

October 15, 2015 – No Progress – 180 day extension granted. 

 

November 10, 2015 – No Progress 

 

December 15, 2015 – Progress 

 

January 12, 2016 – No Progress 

 

February 9, 2016 – No Progress 

 

March 10, 2016 – No Progress 

 

May 10, 2016 - No Progress 

 

June 21, 2016 - No Progress 

 

July 19, 2016 - No Progress 

 

August 9, 2016 - No Progress 

 

September 13, 2016 – 180 Day Extension Granted 

 

November 8, 2016 - No Progress 

 

December 13, 2016 – No Progress 

 

January 10, 2017 – No Progress 

 

February 21, 2017 – 180 Day Extension Granted 

 

March 14, 2017 – No Progress 

 

April 11, 2017 – No Progress 

 

May 9, 2017 – No Progress 

 

June 20, 2017 – No Progress 

 

July 18, 2017 – No Progress 

 

August 8, 2017 – 180 Day Extension Granted 



 

September 12, 2017 – No Progress 

October 9, 2017 - No Progress 

 

November 14, 2017 - No Progress 

 

December 12, 2017 - No Progress 

 

January 9, 2018 – No progress 

 

February 13, 2018 – 180 Day extension request granted. 

 

March 15, 2018 - No Progress 

 

April 10, 2018 - No Progress 

 

May 7, 2018 - No Progress 

 

June 19, 2018 - No Progress 

 

July 17, 2018 – 90 Day Extension Granted 

  

August 14, 2018 – No Progress 

 

September 11, 2018 – No Progress 

 

October 8, 2018 – No progress 

 

January 8, 2019 – Exterior progress 

 

April 9, 2019 – 180 day extension request granted. 

 

May – July 2019 – Interior and Exterior progress 

 

August 13, 2019 – No progress 

 

 

 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



NEWNAN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 9/24/2019 
 
From: Jennifer Petrino  
Sent: Wednesday, September 4, 2019 5:35 PM 
To: Libby Winn  
Subject: Re: Parks of Olmsted Community Yard Sale 
 
Hi Ms. Winn! 
 
I hope this email finds you well. The Parks of Olmsted HOA would like to get permission to put up 
Community Yard Sale banners (2'x4') from Monday, October 28th through Saturday, November 2nd at 
our two main entrances. We have an entrance on Poplar Road and an entrance on Mary Freeman Road. 

\There will also be smaller signs at the entrance to each section of our neighborhood, pointing people to 
turn down the streets where the sales are. This will be at the corners of Vanderbilt Parkway/Avondale 
Circle, Vanderbilt and Fenway, Vanderbilt and Asheville Place, Vanderbilt and Asheville Court, Vanderbilt 
and Berkeley Park, Vanderbilt and Seneca Park and Vanderbilt Parkway and Vanderbilt Pointe Way.  

Our community yard sale is Saturday, November 2nd from 8am-2pm. We currently have 20+ homes 
participating in the sale. The signs will be removed after 2pm.   

I think you filled out the form for me last time, but if you would like to send me a blank form, I would be 
happy to fill it out and send it back to you. Just let me know what I need to do!  

 

Thank you!  

Jennifer Petrino 

678-857-9150 

www.SicilianFamilyTree.com 
 
 

http://www.sicilianfamilytree.com/


 

P.O. Box 1433  
Newnan, Georgia 30264  

September 9, 2019  
 
Mr. Cleatus Phillips  
City Manager  
25 La Grange Street  
Newnan, GA 30263  

Dear Mayor and City Council,  

I am writing to request permission from the City of Newnan to establish a collection point on the 
downtown square for the Newnan Junior Service League’s annual Can-A-Thon to benefit the 
Coweta Community Food Pantry. This is our 36th year to have the Can-A-Thon, and it has 
always been well supported throughout the community.  

This year’s event is planned for Tuesday, December 3rd from 7a.m. to 7p.m. We will need to 
set up the collection point on the north side of the Square. We also request permission to accept 
cash contributions from passersby and contributors to the event. In addition, we would like to 
hang a banner as we have done in previous years.  

We are extremely appreciative of the assistance you have given us in the past, and we 
look forward to hearing from you on this matter.  

Sincerely,  
 
Adrianne Philpott and Katie Kaminski  
Can-A-Thon Co-Chairs  
njslcanathon@gmail.com  



NEWNAN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 9/24/2019 
 
From: Eric Marston  
Sent: Monday, September 9, 2019 3:21 PM 
To: Libby Winn  
Subject: Request to Get Space Reserved on the Square from FBC Newnan 
  
Hi Libby, 
  
I would like to request the date of Saturday November 30th from 1:30-4:30 to set up just a 
couple of tables to offer free Christmas wrapping to anyone compliments of FBC Newnan.  We 
plan to have a banner set up above the tables advertising Free Gift-Wrapping compliments of 
FBC Newnan.  We desire to set up in 2 different location.  Both of these locations will be in a 
position that will not interrupt foot traffic.  Both of these locations are on two corners of the 
center of the Newnan Square, but not touching on any of the walkways or land near the 
courthouse.  I have attached 2 pictures of those locations.  We desire to be a blessing to others 
during the Christmas Season without interrupting anybody’s activities.  We plan on having 6-10 
people for each location helping us with this love offering of free gift wrapping to our 
community. 
  
Let me know if this is possible to get approved? 

  
Thanks, 
  
Eric 

 



                



 
92 Farmer Street | Newnan, GA 30263 | 770.683.0924 | WWW.CCAAHM.COM 

CLIFTON FISHER III 
P R E S I D E N T   

 
To the City of Newnan, Georgia: 
 
On behalf of the African American Alliance Inc., in accordance with the Coweta County African 
American Heritage Museum and Research Center, I am formally requesting the approval from 
City Council for a Ground Penetrating Radar survey to be conducted on the site of Farmer Street 
Cemetery located at 92 Farmer Street in Newnan, Georgia. For the past several months, the 
Alliance has been in correspondence with Dr. Jeffrey Glover, who leads the Archaeology 
Department at Georgia State University. Since the inception of this partnership, Dr. Glover has 
agreed to offer the school's resources and assist us with confirming the 249 unmarked graves, as 
well as the possibility of more on the cemetery and museum site. By confirming the number of 
graves on the site, this will create opportunities for revitalization of the property, formal 
recognition of the cemetery on the National Registry for historic places, as well as a myriad of 
other expansion opportunities. This project is planned to take place between the period of 
October to the end of November 2019. However, before this project can begin, we must have the 
approval of the city to conduct a project of this magnitude on city property. If you have any other 
questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me. Thank you for your consideration 
and I am looking forward to your response.  
 
Best regards, 

 
 
 

Clifton Fisher 
President & CEO, African American Alliance, Inc. 
Executive Director, CCAAHMRC 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: September 24, 2019 
 
Agenda Item:  Consideration of Use of Public Right of Ways for Random 
Productions for an HBO Film Project from September 30, 2019 – October 4, 
2019 

 
Prepared by:   Ashley Copeland, Communications Manager 
 
Presented by: Hasco Craver, Assistant City Manager 

 
Purpose: Newnan City Council may consider the use of public rights of way for Random 
Productions filming project. 
 
Background: The City of Newnan received an application for filming from Random Productions, 
which includes the following requests: 
 
Road Closures 

� Filming Location: 155 Greenville Street  
Between Nimmons Street and Spence Avenue 
 Full Road Closure: September 30, 2019 from 9:00 am to 1:00 am 

Full Road Closure: October 1, 2019 from 11:00 am to 7:00 pm 
Full Road Closure: October 3, 2019 from 5:00 pm to 7:00 am 
Full Road Closure: October 4, 2019 from 5:00 pm to 7:00 am 
Full Road Closure: October 5, 2019 from 5:00 pm to 7:00 am (**Weather 
Contingency Date / Clean Up Day**) 

 
Filming Location: LaGrange Street 
Between S. Court Square and Spring Street 
 Full Road Closure: October 1, 2019 from 6:00 pm to 2:00 am 
 

 
Parking Spaces 

� September 27, 2019 – October 4, 2019: use of 11 spaces on Lagrange Street 
� September 27, 2019 – October 4, 2019: use of 12 spaces on Spring Street 
� September 27, 2019 – October 4, 2019: use of 12 spaces in the O.C. Williams Parking 

Lot 
� October 1, 2019: use of 38 spaces on Lagrange Street 
� October 1, 2019: use of 27 spaces on Spring Street 
� October 1, 2019: use of 6 spaces on W Broad Street 
� October 1, 2019: use of 16 spaces on E. Broad Street (by Train Depot) 

 
City Building Usage 

� Use of the Carnegie Library to turn use exterior only between September 27, 2019 to 
October 4, 2019 

 
The applicant has completed a Film, Television, Music and Video Production Permit Application, 
as required. In addition, the applicant has satisfactorily completed all items listed on the 
Guidelines and Checklist for Filming. 



 
Funding: N/A 
 
Recommendation: City staff has reviewed the application and all required materials needed for 
filming in the city. City staff has held various meetings with Random Productions staff to ensure 
agreeable plans for street closures and use of parking spaces. City staff is supportive of the 
request as described herein.   
 
If approved and according to the recent film policy, City staff will post approved filming project 
on the city’s website to ensure adequate public notification. 
 
Attachments:  
 

1. Random Productions – HBO Filming Project Proposal; 2. HBO Filming Project 
Notification Letter; 4. Certificate of Liability Insurance; 5. City of Newnan Guidelines and 
Checklist for Filming  

        
Previous Discussions with Council: Presented to the Mayor and Newnan City Council during 
the September 10, 2019 meeting, asked to be moved to the September 24th meeting with a 
lighten the footprint and approval from all affected business owners. 
 



Calendar Template © calendarlabs.com 

October 2019 
 Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

  1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 
 
 

8 9 10 11 
 
 

12 

13 
 
 

14 
 

15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 
 
 

25 26 

27 28 
 
 

29 30 31 
 

  

       

Filming:
Greenville St.

Filming:
Greenville St.

Filming:
Greenville St.

Filming:
Greenville St.

Weather 
Contingency filming 
day:
Greenville St.

Filming:
Greenville St.

30

September - October 2019 

Paola Cambo 
FILMING:
WINTHROP SET
GREENVILLE ST
9A-1A�

Paola Cambo 
FILMING:
WINTHROP SET
GREENVILLE ST
11A - 7P
TBD: LA GRANGE ST.
6P-2A
�

Paola Cambo 
FILMING:
WINTHROP SET
GREENVILLE ST
2P-4A�

Paola Cambo 
FILMING:
WINTHROP SET
GREENVILLE ST
5P-7A�

Paola Cambo 
FILMING:
WINTHROP SET
GREENVILLE ST
5P-7A�

Paola Cambo 
WEATHER CONTINGENCY DAY:
WINTHROP SET
GREENVILLE ST
5P-7A�



POLICE STATION SET
PARKING REQUEST PREP SEPT 27- SEPT 30 / WRAP OCT 1- OCT 4 =  7 
DAYS TOTAL
11 SPACES ON LA GRANGE ST
12 SPACES ON SPRING ST
12 SPACES O.C. WILLIAMS LOT
TOTAL SPACES: 35



ONE WAY

O
N

E
 W

A
Y

O
N

E
 W

A
Y

O
N

E
 W

A
Y

O
N

E
 W

A
Y

O
N

E
 W

A
Y

O
N

E
 W

A
Y

O
N

E
 W

A
Y

O
N

E
 W

A
Y

G
re

e
n

v
ille

S
t

E
C

o
u

rt
S

q

W
C

o
u

rt
S

q
S Court Sq

N Court Sq

Spring St

Spring St

L
a

g
ra

n
g

e
S

t

L
a

g
ra

n
g

e
S

t

J
e

ffe
rs

o
n

S
t

J
a

c
k

s
o

n
S

t
E Broad St

E Washington St

P
e

rry
S

t

ONE WAY

ONE WAY

B
ro

w
n

S
t

B
ro

w
n

S
t

W Broad St

W Washington St

Madison St

Madison St

Madison St

W Washington St

W Broad St

P
e

rry
S

t

C
o

lle
g

e
S

t

C
o

lle
g

e
S

t

O
N

E
 W

A
Y

O
N

E
 W

A
Y

1

8

1

10

12 11

11

12

7

7

3

5

10

1

8

4

2

10

10

1 11 12

9

6

6

2

E
N

D
D

E
T

O
U

R

E
N

D
D

E
T

O
U

R

11 12

11

12

Legend

Work Area

Construction Closure

Filming Location

Officer

Cone

N

VMS
BOARD

ROAD
CLOSED
AHEAD

xx/xxx/x 
FOLLOW
DETOUR

All signs & devices shall be placed in accordance to the latest provisions of the Manual 
on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) with respect to any applicable provisions 
from GDOT and the City of Newnan

Access to commercial/residential drives to be maintained at all times

Advance warning signs to be spaced at a minimum of 100' apart; sign placement is 
approximate and may be adjusted to fit field conditions

Officer placements are suggestions and at the discretion of jurisdictional law 
enforcement

PLANS ARE NOT TO SCALE

Page 1 of 1

Type of Roads: Urban
Speed Limit: 25 mph
Traffic Volume: Moderate

DROP:
SHOOT:
PICKUP:

S S
FILM

Southeastern Traffic Supply, LLC
1500 Veterans Memorial Hwy SE
Mableton, GA 30126
404.989.2441

Date: 8/20/19                                            Draft: 1
Design: Walter W. Thompson (c:) 706.254.1919
Project: 'Lovecraft Country' S1
Customer: Random Productions, LLC

FULL CLOSURE
LAGRANGE ST/ SR14:

FROM W BROAD ST
TO SPRING ST

(210 FT)

INT TRAFFIC CONTROL
ALL LANES/ INTERSECTIONS 

OF SPRING ST:
FROM GREENVILLE ST
TO BROWN ST (500 FT)

INT TRAFFIC CONTROL
ALL LANES/ INTERSECTIONS 

OF W BROAD ST:
FROM LAGRANGE ST

TO BROWN ST (200 FT)

ROAD
WORK
AHEAD

1

DETOUR
AHEAD

2

ROAD
CLOSED
AHEAD

3
VMS

BOARD9 106

DETOUR

LAGRANGE ST

7

DETOUR

LAGRANGE ST

8

DETOUR

LAGRANGE ST
BE 

PREPARED
TO STOP

11 124

LEFT LANE
MUST

TURN LEFT

RIGHT LANE
MUST

TURN RIGHT

ROAD
CLOSED

5

1414



ONE WAY

ONE WAY

ONE WAY

COWETA CO
SUPERIOR CT

NEWNAN
HIGH SCHOOL

ONE WAY

ON
E W

AY

ON
E W

AY

Salbide Ave

Powell St

Buchanan St

Lagra
nge St

Sewell RdSewell Rd

Sp
en
ce
Av
e

G
reenville

St

G
reenville

S
t

4th St4th St

3rd St

5th St

6th St

H
ollis

H
eights

Conner Dr
A
rm

ory
R
d

W
aterw

orks
R
d

B
oo

ne
D
r

Reese St

Nimmons St

1s
tA

ve

1s
t A

ve

P
inson

S
t

Savannah St

2n
d
A
ve

Long Pl

Fairmount Dr

MLK Jr Dr

W
all St

R
obinson

S
t

W
all S

t

Turner St

Lambert
St

ONE WAY

W
oo

db
in
e
A
ve

N

All signs & devices shall be placed in 
accordance to the latest provisions of the 
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control 
Devices (MUTCD) with respect to any 
applicable provisions from GDOT and the 
City of Newnan

Access to commercial/residential drives 
to be maintained at all times

Sign placement is approximate and may 
be adjusted to fit field conditions

PLANS ARE NOT TO SCALE

Page 1 of 2

FULL CLOSURE
SR16/ GREENVILLE ST:
FROM SPENCE AVE
TO NIMMONS ST

(2,025 FT)

1
2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

1

1

1

1

1
1

3
2

2

2

2

2

11
12

13

14

10

11

11

11

10

10

10

12

12

12

12

12

13

15

14

14

15

15

Legend
Work Area

Ancillary Closure

Filming Location

Blue Lights

Officer

Cone

14

S S
FILM

Southeastern Traffic Supply, Inc.
1500 Veterans Memorial Hwy SE
Mableton, GA 30126
404.989.2441

Date: 3/22/19                                            Draft: 1
Design: Walter W. Thompson (c:) 706.254.1919
Project: 'Lovecraft Country'
Customer: Random Productions, LLC

Type of Roads: GDOT
Speed Limit: 35 mph
Traffic Volume: Moderate

DROP:
SHOOT:
PICKUP:

ROAD
WORK
AHEAD1

DETOUR
AHEAD2

ROAD
CLOSED
AHEAD3

RIGHT
LANE

CLOSED
AHEAD4

LEFT LANE
MUST

TURN LEFT

RIGHT LANE
MUST

TURN RIGHT5

8
ROAD

CLOSED
ROAD

CLOSED

9
ROAD CLOSED

TO
THRU TRAFFIC6

ROAD CLOSED
TO

THRU TRAFFIC7

10

DETOUR

GREENVILLE ST
DETOUR

GREENVILLE ST
11

DETOUR

GREENVILLE ST
12

VMS
BOARD13 14 15

PARKING LANE CLOSURE
ALL CURB LANES

OF REESE ST: FROM 
GREENVILLE ST TO 

LAGRANGE ST (1,500 FT)

16



DETOUR ROUTES

All signs & devices shall be placed in 
accordance to the latest provisions of the 
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control 
Devices (MUTCD) with respect to any 
applicable provisions from GDOT and the 
City of Newnan

Access to commercial/residential drives 
to be maintained at all times

Sign placement is approximate and may 
be adjusted to fit field conditions

PLANS ARE NOT TO SCALE

Page 2 of 2

FULL CLOSURE
SR16/ GREENVILLE ST:
FROM SPENCE AVE
TO NIMMONS ST

(2,025 FT)

S S
FILM

Southeastern Traffic Supply, Inc.
1500 Veterans Memorial Hwy SE
Mableton, GA 30126
404.989.2441

Date: 3/22/19                                            Draft: 1
Design: Walter W. Thompson (c:) 706.254.1919
Project: 'Lovecraft Country'
Customer: Random Productions, LLC

1. Turn LEFT onto Sewell Rd
2. Turn RIGHT onto Waterworks Rd
3. Turn RIGHT onto Lagrange St
4. Turn RIGHT onto Nimmons St

NORTHBOUND GREENVILLE ST
1. Turn RIGHT onto Reese St
2. Turn LEFT onto Lagrange St
3. Turn LEFT onto Waterworks Rd
4. Turn LEFT onto Sewell Rd

SOUTHBOUND GREENVILLE ST

1. Turn RIGHT/CONTINUE on
Spence Ave

2. Turn LEFT onto Wall St
3. Turn LEFT onto Salbide Ave

NORTHBOUND GREENVILLE ST/
EASTBOUND SPENCE AVE 1. CONTINUE on Spence Ave

2. Turn RIGHT onto Sewell RD

WESTBOUND SPENCE AVE

***SEE NB GREENVILLE ST
FOR REMAINDER***



 
RANDOM PRODUCTIONS, LLC 

Random Productions, LLC | 1415 Constitution Rd, SE, Atlanta, GA 30316 

 

 
 
September 17, 2019 
 
Dear Downtown Newnan Neighbors: 
 
 
Random Productions, LLC will be filming scenes for a series in downtown 
Newnan for 1 night during the week on Tuesday, October 1st, 2019 
 
We will be transforming a majority of business on La Grange St. (between South 
Court Sq. and Spring St) back into the 1950’s. In order to facilitate this 
transformation, we will need to utilize parking in the immediate areas as well as 
implement intermittent traffic and pedestrian control. 
 
We are scheduled to start the work tentatively on Friday, September 27. 
Restoration will take place between Wednesday, October 2nd and Friday, 
October 4th.  All City Streets will remain open during our preparation and 
restoration periods.  All of the local businesses will remain open and accessible.  
 
We are in the process of obtaining all the necessary permits from the City of 
Newnan and the Georgia Department of Transportation. We will also have the 
assistance of the Newnan Police Department during our stay in the City. Once 
we receive the permits, we will issue a notification with the specific dates, 
closures, and times.  
 
Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions or concerns. We 
are excited to be working in Historic Downtown Newnan, and enjoying all the 
city has to offer. 
 
 
Paola Cambó 
Key Assistant Location Manager / Scout 
C. 787.613.3841 
E: paolacambo@mac.com 
 
                   
 
 



 
RANDOM PRODUCTIONS, LLC 

Random Productions, LLC | 1415 Constitution Rd, SE, Atlanta, GA 30316 

 

 
 
September 17, 2019 
 
Dear Downtown Newnan Neighbors: 
 
 
Random Productions, LLC will be filming scenes for a series in downtown 
Newnan for 1 night during the week on Tuesday, October 1st, 2019 
 
We will be transforming a majority of business on La Grange St. (between South 
Court Sq. and Spring St) back into the 1950’s. In order to facilitate this 
transformation, we will need to utilize parking in the immediate areas as well as 
implement intermittent traffic and pedestrian control. 
 
We are scheduled to start the work tentatively on Friday, September 27. 
Restoration will take place between Wednesday, October 2nd and Friday, 
October 4th.  All City Streets will remain open during our preparation and 
restoration periods.  All of the local businesses will remain open and accessible.  
 
We are in the process of obtaining all the necessary permits from the City of 
Newnan and the Georgia Department of Transportation. We will also have the 
assistance of the Newnan Police Department during our stay in the City. Once 
we receive the permits, we will issue a notification with the specific dates, 
closures, and times.  
 
Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions or concerns. We 
are excited to be working in Historic Downtown Newnan, and enjoying all the 
city has to offer. 
 
 
Paola Cambó 
Key Assistant Location Manager / Scout 
C. 787.613.3841 
E: paolacambo@mac.com 
 
                   
 
 



SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

5,000,000

MWZY 31363619

Manashi Mukherjee

NYC-010659262-01

X

of Marsh USA Inc.

N

06/01/2019
06/01/2020

A
MWTB 31363519

5,000,000

3,000,000

X

X

05/20/2019

LOVEC 

06/01/2019

Re: Production: “Lovecraft Country" Season 1




X

               Newnan, GA  30263

               City of Newnan


 Certificate holder is included as an additional insured where required by contract. 

A

CN101825320-AT&T-gl/al-19-20

NA

5,000,000
06/01/2020MWZX 31363719 (MI)

5,000,000

24147

1,000,000

               1166 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS

               MARSH USA, INC.


               NEW YORK, NY  10036

               1415 Constitution Road SE

               Random Productions, LLC


               Atlanta, GA  30316
               “Lovecraft Country” Season 1


06/01/2019

               25 LaGrange Street


A

.

06/01/2020

Old Republic Insurance Company



ACORD 101 (2008/01)
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

© 2008 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,
FORM NUMBER: FORM TITLE:

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page           of

AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:
LOC #:

AGENCY

CARRIER NAIC CODE

POLICY NUMBER

NAMED INSURED

EFFECTIVE DATE:

22

New York

��
Self-Insured Retention - $1,000,000�

��
��

Combined Single Limit - $1,000,000 �
Excess Automobile Liability - MWZX 31363719 (MI)  �

Certificate of Liability Insurance

CN101825320

               MARSH USA, INC.�
               1415 Constitution Road SE�
               Random Productions, LLC�

               Atlanta, GA  30316
               “Lovecraft Country” Season 1�

25



 

City of Newnan Guidelines / Checklist for Filming 
City Manager’s Office 

25 LaGrange Street, Newnan, GA 30263 
678-673-5512 

 
 

Please Note: The City of Newnan requires a permit for all commercial TV/film/video productions. 
However, those projects that require street closures for a duration less than 3 days and Intermittent 
Traffic Control for a duration less than 7 days may be reviewed administratively. Applications that include 
extended durations will be required to secure approval from the Newnan City Council.  

Checklist for Filming in the City of Newnan 
The following checklist provides guidance to all applicants interested in filming in the City of Newnan. 

  Task To Be Completed… 

 1. 
 
Completion of Film, Television, Music and Video Production Permit Application 
Applications must be submitted at least 2 weeks prior to the scheduled film/prep dates.  

☐ 2. 

 
Completion of public notification requirements 

� Applicants are required to place “yard signs” in areas where businesses and 
residents may be affected or impacted by filming. Signs are available at Newnan 
City Hall and must be returned after filming. 

� Applicants must produce a signed affidavit as proof of contacting directly affected 
business owners and residents in impacted areas.   
 

☐ 3. 

 
Obtain approval from the Georgia Department Of Transportation if state routes will be 
used during filming (if applicable). 
 

☐ 4.  
 
Provide Insurance Certification naming the City of Newnan as additional insured. 
 

☐ 5. 

Applicant must secure approval from the Newnan City Council only when:  
1. Production requires street/sidewalk closure for more than 3 days; or 
2. Production requires intermittent traffic control for more than 7 days 
 
Applicant presentation/proposal before Newnan City Council must include the following: 

� Dates, times and locations of filming 
� Sketch and/or diagram of the filming/prep site(s) designating placement of large 

equipment, trailers, etc. 
� List of businesses/residents contacted  
� A copy of your presentation/proposal must be transmitted to City Manager’s 

Office at least one week prior to the City Council meeting 
� Applicant or designee must attend City Council meeting 

 

☐ 6.  

 
Payment must be received in advance of filming. Please see fee schedule attached 
herein.  
 
 



☐ 7.  

 
Notify Coweta County Camera Ready Program Liaison (Tray Baggarly – 
tbaggarly@coweta.ga.us) when seeking approval of use of County facilities, buildings and 
properties. 
 

☐ 8. 

 
Contact City of Newnan Office of Communications (Ashley Copeland – 
acopeland@cityofnewnan.org) for additional questions or information regarding the City 
of Newnan’s filming guidelines. 

 

  



The City of Newnan 2019 Council Meetings 

Day Month Date Time Agenda Items Due – 5:00 PM 
Tuesday January 8 2:30 12/31/2018 
Tuesday January 22 6:30 1/15/2019 
Tuesday February 12 2:30 2/5/2019 
Tuesday February 26 6:30 2/19/2019 
Monday March 11 2:30 3/5/2019 
Tuesday March 26 6:30 3/19/2019 
Tuesday April 9 2:30 4/2/2019 
Tuesday April 23 6:30 4/16/2019 
Tuesday May 7 2:30 4/30/2019 
Tuesday May 28 6:30 5/21/2019 
Tuesday June 18 6:30 6/11/2019 
Tuesday July 16 6:30 7/9/2019 
Tuesday August 13 2:30 8/6/2019 
Tuesday August 27 6:30 8/20/2019 
Tuesday September 10 2:30 9/3/2019 
Tuesday September 24 6:30 9/17/2019 
Tuesday October 8 2:30 10/1/2019 
Tuesday October 22 6:30 10/15/2019 
Tuesday November 12 2:30 11/5/2019 
Tuesday November 26 6:30 11/19/2019 
Tuesday December 10 6:00 Public Hearing/2020 Budget 
Tuesday December 10 6:30 12/3/3019 

Meeting dates and times are subject to change. 



Motion to Enter into Executive Session 
 
I move that we now enter into closed session as allowed by O.C.G.A. §50-14-4 and 
pursuant to advice by the City Attorney, for the purpose of discussing  
 
 
And that we, in open session, adopt a resolution authorizing and directing the Mayor or 
presiding officer to execute an affidavit in compliance with O.C.G.A. §50-14-4, and that 
this body ratify the actions of the Council taken in closed session and confirm that the 
subject matters of the closed session were within exceptions permitted by the open 
meetings law. 
 
 

Motion to Adopt Resolution after Adjourning Back into Regular Session 
 
I move that we adopt the resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the affidavit stating 
that the subject matter of the closed portion of the council meeting was within the 
exceptions provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-4(b). 
 


	NEWNAN CITY COUNCIL MEETING-SEPTEMBER 24, 2019
	READING OF THE MINUTES
	A-Minutes Regular Meeting 9/10/2019

	BOARDS & COMMISSIONS
	NEW BUSINESS
	B-PH-Ordinance Amendment-Chapter 6 Businesses
	C-Ord Amend Budget / Christmas Commission
	D-Ordinances regarding Small Cell Wireless / ROW
	E-Update to WWI Plaque Veteran's Memorial Plaza
	F-Resolution-Aughtorizing application to GOSP
	G-Resolution-Support-Long-term Maintenance of LINC/GOSP
	H-Info Only-Rezoning/22.485+ acres Bullsboro/Ahsley Park Dr

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	I-Consider approval dev/admin svcs related to 2020 CDBG App
	J-6 Glenn Street-New owner update status/request extension
	K-Continue PH - 8 Glenn - Res to repair/demolish
	L-280 W Washington-Owner request 180-day extension

	VISITORS PETITIONS COMMUNICATIONS & COMPLAINTS
	M-Parks of Olmstead-Signs/Community Yard Sale Event
	N-NJSL-36th Annual Can-A-Thon 12/3/19 7am - 7pm
	O-FBC Newnan-Set up to offer free gift wrapping 11/30/19
	P-AA Heritage Museum-Req Ground Penetrating Radar Survey
	Q-Random Productions HBO Film 9/30/19 - 10/4/19

	MOTION TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION
	ADJOURNMENT



